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2551 2550
2008 2007

selléisan / Total Revenue 15,513 16,101 15,338 -4%
sellfannnisane / Sales Revenue 15,106 15,636 15,005 -3%
finlsduging / Gross Profit 2,561 2,559 2,836 0%
AlsannsAiLnIs / Operating Profit 1,856 1,927 2,204 -4%
Mlsreunenidiadnent® Ardessan wazAdadwing / EBITDA 2,818 2,777 2,923 1%
ﬁﬂi‘?ﬁi’l?ﬁﬁ’ﬂu?’mn’]?ﬂﬂk’iu/ Net Profit before Exceptional Items 1,910 2,057 2,222 -T%
ks (@anw) dwFull / Net Profit (Loss) for the year 1,910 2,449 2,216 -22%
FIUNINERW / Total Assets 14,312 13,773 12,347 4%
NINETRUN199-gMT / Net Fixed Assets 5,875 5,567 5,143 6%
9HAW / Total Liabilities 1,914 2,483 2,475 -23%
dauzesdfiatiu / Sharenolders Equity 12,397 11,291 9,872 10%
uﬁau@mﬁ (Ruam) / Net (Cash) Debt / Equity -0.22 -0.08 0.04
mlsgnindsinasiaaeldainnisee / Net Profit (after tax) % Sales 13% 16% 15% -19%
Mlsreuaaniiasneanti Adauman wazAdnsngsanian / EBITDA Margin 19% 18% 19% 6%
8R9IMBUUNUETBIN / Return on Equity 15% 22% 22% -29%
Ruiluraanesiais / Dividend per share (adjusted for share split) 1.20 1.30 1.50 -8%
ARIRuUIUNaans (134'mmwmaemﬁu) / Payout ratio (excl. exceptional items) 52% 52% 56% -1%
mlssiatfunausiunisanidi / EPS before Exceptional ltem 2.30 2.48 2.72 T%
mlasiadundssenisaniiu / EPS after Exceptional Item 2.30 2.95 2.71 -22%
sAANLiTy@satiu / Book Value per share 14.93 13.60 11.96 10%
ﬁ:umﬁm%@ﬁu / Shares balance repurchased 4.48

fﬁ”]uquﬁu (4 éuﬂ) / Number of shares outstanding (year end) 826.00 830.41 825.22 -1%
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)) For many, the year 2008 will be a year they would wish to
forget. A year in which the financial world came to the brink of a
complete meltdown and when the gathering clouds of recession
erupted into the perfect storm that now seems to have engulfed
every sector in every economy. If that wasn’t enough we
experienced our own local upheavals with political unrest
culminating with the closing of our international airport and life
line to the outside world

The electronics industry which has a high exposure to
discretionary spending is being hit particularly hard and the
challenges that we face are unprecedented in the company’s history.

Through 2008 we have faced a compete range of
challenges. During the first half of the year, we saw the Thai
baht strengthen to ten year highs coupled with the peaking of
the commodity prices of gold, base metals and oil, all of which
pressured our margins considerably. In China, we also
experienced extremely high labour turnover which by the year
end had completely about turned as Chinese companies also
joined the legions with layoff and closures.

Customer demand however held up despite the growing
signs of the recession that was to break out. During the course
of the year, with the easing of the Thai baht, Hana's performance
continued to improve until the last quarter when the global
financial crisis suddenly brought on the recession.

In 2008 Hana Group Sales declined 3% from THB
15,636m in 2007 to THB 15,106m. Operating Income declined
4% from THB 1,927m to THB 1,856m. EBITDA grew 1% from
THB 2,777m to THB 2,818m, and Cash Reserves grew 38% from
THB 3,386m to THB 4,679m.

Our semiconductor operations in Ayutthaya and Jiaxing
experienced weak demand in the first half but improved strongly
in the third quarter only to see a dramatic decline towards the
end of the final quarter as world demand evaporated along with
the airport closure making matters even worse.

Our PCBA operations in Jiaxing by contrast saw firm
demand in the early part of the year with a more gradual
softening in the second half. However our PCBA operation in
Lamphun saw strong demand throughout the year and only saw
marginal weakness at year end resulting in the achievement of
record results in both revenue and bottom line.



mwmﬂmuuﬂm wniwm”lmmMmmw%mwammmn 1nel
RN N@mnmm LED wl%"lu@mmuﬂﬁumuﬂum

mﬂmiwmiaﬂﬂa‘muﬁmmmeﬂﬂmnm aNENN9LAA
fmqmmuﬁmymmummu ‘Vl’ﬂ,‘wLﬁ"l[il'ﬂ\'i‘ﬂw@’ﬂiuw"ﬂ\ﬁ']ﬂ"\]'mEJ’]‘F_I
wuummL‘ﬂﬁmmm:mLquamiumﬂmm%mim FasiulFiadndail
QY L‘ﬂuﬂ@ﬂﬂﬁ%ﬂﬂm@\ﬂuﬂ 2552 ez flutliAausimiase
nane] 1_|mwwﬂumunﬁiL\ﬁuwaﬂuLL@m anunazidngtanaaen
Nuangnwinriu 4,316 mumw‘lﬁmmiuwuaumﬂmiﬂauﬁmmi
muuumwmﬂﬂ‘luﬁmvwmmmmﬁ‘wﬂ Li‘flu”lﬁ‘lumimmﬂmw
EEE L‘J@’WILﬁi‘]ﬂﬂﬂ@[ilﬂ[il’Wlﬂ’]WJ’]@tﬂ’l’lu’luLLﬂtﬂJﬁ\ﬂNNV}i’l'ﬂ’Wx
mumm

mﬂm\ma\"l,mwma‘mqwnq NNaaen memmuwu@mqmmm
mmiﬂimﬂaﬁum mLuumnwﬂumnmmqmimﬁluwmi@n
V]Li"mﬂﬂ\‘lm“ﬁﬂ_lﬂ?_l mqLimwmﬂ‘wmLﬂummmmﬂ@mwmﬂu
AYNTULTNTRIADUNNIN AT A mmmu‘l,miwmummu
m'l,ﬂ”l,m wdnay mmumnmmmwmimLLaJLmqmmﬁﬂwm
T@nmm‘lumqanumu%mummmL;Jfrfl,m

HNTBUAAIAIINTBLADIUANINIIULBAUTIATNITHNS
LTHEN mmmuﬂmwumw'ﬂmuum HALTRARINEINNLAY
mumummmmmﬂ @m\ﬂaﬂmuLﬂummm“mmmummvwmﬂ
2551 uwﬂummﬂmmmmﬂm@u ileRisasfassuilafuenindd
aufimaliT] 2552 }

5\1@nﬁﬂﬁﬁ@mﬁ%mw_jﬁ’wﬁwmwmmm BIEEEILY
YBUAMAIMNNNAINTUNN9ATLAYUIBININYU La‘ﬂﬁﬂmm&iﬂ
vwmLﬂuuumum”mmumuummmmm R FUviuRay
mmumnuamﬂmwmmﬂmﬂmmmuumnmwmqm@mm
NN del

mmﬂu mmumnwummsw Nmmmmmwmmmm
mumm’Lumqmuumuu’Lumww g lulasaidalnifing anrin
(Wv7w) agingsialile fauddnaziauguuselunaiauuasy
ﬂmmmwimmuﬂumﬂwwum radedntszaunisnflunisdanas
mmmmmimm@“mmmdﬁﬁuﬂﬂmmimumm”mmmmw
#0NUNNINIAILARAANEAY

ML /\(
UNELTUTN MUNTENS
szarunssums

The Custom Package Group (CPG) had a flat year until the
last quarter when sales fell away, in particular, for the LED
products assembled for the auto industry.

As it became increasing apparent that the world was
spiraling into a recession and with the credit crunch taking its
toll we put the breaks on capital expenditure and targeted to
retain as much cash as possible. Clearly this has been the right
strategy as 2009 looks to be a year that will challenge
companies with weak balance sheets severely. Hana will enter
the year with a net cash position of THB 4,316m with no bank
debt and therefore in the best possible position to face what is
expected to be both a prolonged and deep recessionary period.

Your management has and continues to review all options to
reduce cost, rationalize our operations and adapt to the new world
environment in which we face. Some hard decisions will have to be
made depending on the severity of the economic situation but we
are focused on steering the company through no matter how difficult
and how long this world recession will last.

| would like to extend my gratitude to all our staff and my
fellow directors for their hard work and focus during what has
clearly been a difficult and turbulent year. However let us remind
ourselves that 2008 was a mild practice run for what we expect
to happen in 2009.

To all Hana's valued customers and suppliers please
accept my gratitude for all your support. We value your
partnership and your patronage and like you we will face the
future challenges with a spirit of cooperation.

Finally dear shareholder, | would like to express my
gratitude for your continued support in Hana Microelectronics
PCL. Despite the turbulence in the capital markets and the
inhospitable future imminently ahead, | am confident that Hana’s
experienced management team can ride the storm until calmer
conditions prevail.

NI ;’\(
Mr. Bancha Tarnprakorn

Chairman
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The year 2008 has certainly been a challenging year for
The Custom Products Group “CPG”.

The demand for small LEDs primarily used in the
automotive business dropped significantly in Q408 in-line with
the large drop in auto sales world-wide. As a result we
implemented major cost reductions programs which have been
executed in parallel with all levels of employees in the
organization.

The fiber optic high speed devices showed very strong
demand during the year with more than half of CPG’s revenue
coming from the new higher gigabyte products introduction for
wireless LAN.

Looking forward to the year 2009, we believe the CPG will
have another challenging year with higher expectation of price
and cost reductions from our major customers combined with an
uncertain world economic situation. The demand for electronics
components worldwide especially standard LEDs and small
LEDs for automotive business are not expected to recover until
at least the second half of the year.

The CPG will continue to focus on new customers of the
fiber optic high speed devices which despite the recessionary
environment look positive.

We will continue to focus on productivity improvements at
all level of employees in the organization and combine this with
our LEAN manufacturing projects in order to get us through the
anticipated weakness in 2009.

Mr. Issra Sivakul
Vice President and General Manager
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Hana Semiconductor (Ayutthaya) Co., Ltd.
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For Hana Semiconductor (Ayutthaya), the year 2008 was
one of very mixed results.

The year started with relatively weak demand. However,
significant loading increases led to record volumes in the
second and third quarter of the year. During this period the peak
exceeded 10 million units per day at Hana (Ayutthaya). This was
a very significant milestone for showing the evolution and
maturity of the team to handle significant volume loadings with
consistent performance.

The performance during the second and third quarter
positioned us well, however the very rapid decline in the world
economic situation in Q4 coupled with the local political crisis,
resulted in a sudden drop in loadings in November and
December 2008. These events resulted in slightly lower revenue
in 2008 compared to 2007.

The overall positive performance of Hana (Ayutthaya) in
2008 in terms of quality, delivery, capability and flexibility has
resulted in us being selected by many of our larger customers
as their preferred subcontractor. This is a very positive sign for
us and is the ultimate recognition from our customers. This will
position us well, as they go through their subcontractor
consolidation process.

Based on all current indications, we expect 2009 to be one
of the most challenging years that we have yet faced. However
the fundamentals of Hana (Ayutthaya) in all aspects are very
strong and we have a capable and professional team in place.
We are therefore confident that when the business environment
improves we shall be well positioned to capture additional
market share and resume our growth as primary partners with
our key customers.

Mr. Sanjay Mitra

Vice President & General Manager
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Hana Microelectronics Public Co., Ltd. - Lamphun
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The 2008 was a challenging year for Hana Microelectronics
(Lamphun), however, we were able to achieve a record, for the
third consecutive year. Our new 100,000 square feet facility was
completed and fully occupied by the first half of 2008. Its
completion enabled us to make space for the renovation of the
original facility built in 1994. That renovation is now completed
with the resulting floor space ready for business expansion.

So far the economic recession has not had a significant
impact on our operations due to the diversity of our customer
base. We are confident that we shall continue to grow in the
computer and telecommunication sectors to offset the drop in
demand in certain product segments, such as automotive.

Customer demand continues to get higher in terms of
quality and responsiveness. Most customers demand “Zero
Defect” quality, short manufacturing cycle time in a world class
manufacturing environment. Our practice of the international
standards of TS16949, 1SO9000, 1ISO14385, OHSAS 18000
enable us to meet those demands and continue to improve our
competitive position.

In 2008 our operations focused on productivity
improvement and automation. With our strong teamwork and
participation these programs enabled us to improve our
productivity and profitability, despite the economic downturn
and strong Thai Baht currency. We will continue these programs
in 2009.

We anticipate 2009 will be a more challenging year for us
than the 2008, but we have very high confidence that we will be
successful to achieve our goals and we continue to strive for
further growth.

Mr. Wing Keung Chow

Vice President and General Manager
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Hana Microelectronics (JiaXing) Co., Ltd. - Microelectronics Division
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My maiden year as General Manager for Hana Micro
Jiaxing 2008 was both an eventful and challenging one due to
the global economic turmoil.

Encouragingly, our employees took up the challenges well
and triumphed over the difficulties with good team spirit. Despite
the notable demand decline due to the global recession which
started in Q3, we not only achieved a 6% growth in sales
revenue year-on-year but also recovered from the significant
drop of the operating profit in 2007, (which was particularly
impacted from the higher overhead costs resulting from the
move of facility from Shanghai to JiaXing).

With our continual improvement in capability and service
we continued to attract many new customers who increased
sales in various business segments. Key Performance Indicators
“KPI” across all functions brought a focused approach to
improve the operations and business performance. Furthermore,
the “customer-oriented concept” was used and demonstrated a
constant enhancement in product quality, on time delivery, New
Product Introduction “NPI|” cycle time, Designed for
Manufacturing “DFM” service, and flexibility. Company wide
implementation of the 5S Program (a philosophy and a way of
organizing and managing the workspace with the intent to
improve efficiency by eliminating waste and improving order in
the workplace), introduction of new process capabilities and
certification of the QC08000 RoHS system (the EU Restriction of
Hazardous Substances Directive) brought HM JiaXing one more
step towards becoming a world class EMS company.

| would like to thank all our employees for their hard work,
dedication and contribution in 2008. As we enter 2009 we are
preparing ourselves to face this extraordinary year which we
expect to be full of challenges and difficulties. With focus on
operational excellence during this business downturn, | am
confident that we will survive the crisis and be well prepared
when business picks up again.

Mr. Steven Lee
Executive Vice President and General Manger
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Operation Review

rnuoswaawaanoun IC

- IC Division

Sales revenue increased in the first half of 2008; the result
of our effort in driving small and power packages growth. During
the second half of 2007, the establishment of MSOP capability,
together with the higher demand for computer mouse
components continued to grow the top line. Consequently, we
reached our installed capacity by the third quarter of 2008 as
planned. However, as the global recession took hold in the
fourth quarter sales revenues declined significantly dragging
down our overall performance for the second half of the year.

During the year, to support our future growth, we have put
considerable effort in people development to strengthen our
staff knowledge and capability. Hana JiaXing is still a young
operation and needs to further strengthen capability in all areas.
To support the improvement activities, additional experienced
staff have been added into the New Product Introduction (NPI)
and Technology Development to focus on widening our package
offering, increasing technology capability and developing
stronger operations processes.

People participation and the success in Continuous
Improvement Program is one of the key measurements. Quality
Improvement including mistake proofing (Poka Yoke) programs
haves been established. All key and concerned staffs have
received continual training. Various programs have been
introduced and enhanced to reduce human dependency and
improve workflow such as work-in-process bar coding and the
5S workplace organization program, which is a common
objective for all Hana locations,

In 2009, Hana JiaXing plant will no doubt be affected by
the global economic crisis. All employees are well aware of the
situation and are working together to get through this period of
recession Continuous improvement and human resource
development programs will further enhance our competitive
position and enable us to face the current economic
environment and prepare for the future.

Mr. Yingsak Jenratha

Vice President and General Manager
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Y2008 was another flat year, similar to that of 2007,
with only modest revenue growth of approximately 8%.
Revenue from radio-frequency identification (RFID) business
remained down for the second consecutive year, and was
actually slightly lower in 2008. Microdisplay-related
revenues increased for a second consecutive year although
the increase was only 15% over 2007.

The majority of HMT-produced RFID products went to
pharmaceutical and niche tagging applications. Late in 2008
there was an increase in demand for low-cost tags and labels,
and HMT received promising forecasts for those in 2009. HMT’s
RFID tire tag business grew in 2008, and there is an expectation
of significant growth in this market in 2009 from HMT’s two
largest tire tag clients.

While HMT saw growth in its microdisplay-related
business, the markets of its customers has narrowed and is
primarily focused on mini-projectors, adaptive optics, and
These accounted for 90% of HMT’s
microdisplay revenue, with the remainder being primarily in the

telecom devices.
medical device market. Mini-projectors are becoming viable
products with the expectation that they will break into the cell-
phone market by 2010. HMT remains a key player in the
development of this market as one of only a few open foundry
options for manufacturing these devices. HMT also holds a
strong position in the manufacturing of telecom devices, with
multiple customers covering a variety of applications.

Despite the current world economic climate, HMT looks for
continued growth in 2009 as its customers, and the world, turn to
more technology-related solutions for its problems. Displaying
and communicating information quickly and accurately, and at
lower costs, will be the driver for the markets that HMT and its
customers serve.

Mr. John Erdmann
President and Chief Executive Officer
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Board of Directors

Mr. Bancha Tarnprakorn Mr. Richard David Han Mr. Winson Moong Chu Hui

Chairman of the Board, Executive Vice Chairman & President & Chief Operating Officer
Independent Director Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Terrence Philip Weir Mr. Voraphoj Thepvanaprasiddhi Mr. Martin Enno Horn
Executive Director & Audit Committee, Audit Committee,
Chief Financial Officer Independent Director Independent Director
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Team

Corporate Manufacturing Administration Director Senior Operations Support Manager
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Senior Accounting Manager Senior Corporate Facility Manager

Vice President and General Manager Corporate Management Information System (MIS) Director
Operations Director Senior Hybrid Operations Manager

Senior Interal Audit Manager Senior Corporate Human Resources Manager

Sales & Marketing Director

Vice President and General Manager

0E0ORLOOE Oq
OO0 0O OO O

Process Engineering and Senior
New Project Investment (NPI) Manager

Supply Chain Management Director

Senior Financial Controller

Senior Production Planning and Control Manager

Senior Management Information System (MIS) Manager

Senior Human Resources Manager

Senior Customer Services Manager

Test Operations Director

IC-End of Line Operations / Training Director
Senior Facility Manager

Customer Specific Operations (CSO)
Manufacturing Director
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|C-Front of Line Operations and
New Project Investment (NPI) Director

Senior Test Engineering Manager
Senior IC-Front of Line Manufacturing Manager
Senior Facility Manager

Senior Quality & Reliability Assurance Manager
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Team

Finance Manager

Operations Director

Business Development Director

Vice President & Chief Technology Officer
Vice President & General Manager

Material Control & Logistics Director

Senior Supply Chain Management Manager

Operations Director

Senior Business Development
& Technology Manager

Senior Quality Reliability Assurance Manager
Administration Manager

Senior Production & Material Control Manager
Management Information System Manager
Senior Test Engineering Manager

Senior Operations Manager

Senior Customer Service Manager
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Senior Industrial Engineering, Facility
and Manufacturing Support Manager

Marketing & Customer Services Director

Training & Development Manager

Senior Operations Manager

General Administration Manager

Business Development
& Technology Director

Chief Technical Officer

Vice President & General Manager
(Microelectronics Operations)

Micro Operations Director

Finance, Management Information
System, Human Resource
& General Administration Director

Senior Finance Manager

Human Resource Manager

Senior Supply Chain
Management Manager

Senior Management
Information System (MIS) Manager

Facility Manager
Senior Quality Assurance (QA) Manager

Senior New Project
Investment (NPI) Manager

FOOLE0.6 06
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Senior Operations Manager

Senior Engineering Manager

Senior Purchasing Manager
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Operations & Supply
Chain Management Director

Vice President &
General Manager (IC Operations)

Senior Engineering &
Maintenance (Front of Line) Manager

Senior Engineering &
Maintenance (End of Line) Manager

Senior Facility Manager
New Project Investment (NPI) Manager
Manufacturing Manager

Test Engineering Manager

Senior Quality Assurance (QA) Manager @ @ @

Officer Administrator
Senior Sales Manager
Account Manager
Senior Sales Manager

Senior Strategic Projects and
Technical Support Manager

Senior Sales Manager

Senior Sales Manager

O O O
9 oN 'Or {0

President and Chief Executive Officer
Vice President of Product Development

Vice President of Manufacturing @ @ @

Financial Controller

O ®

Vice President of Business Development
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Directors & Management
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City University, faUARY, A4UTANUNANT
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57/2006
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Financial Statements (UFS) 4/2006
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Mr. Bancha Tarnprakor
Position : Chairman of the Board and
Independent Director
. November 2002 - present,
Independent Director
February 2007 - present, Chairman
of the Board of Directors
. Diploma of Institute of Banker,
London, UK
IOD Training Background : Directors Accreditation
Program (DAP) 40/2005
No. of Share held as of 31 Dec. 2008
No. of Shares
95,000

Working Experience

Educational Background

% of Total Shares
0.011

Mr. Richard David Han
Position : Executive Vice Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer
: 1989 — present, Executive Director
and Chief Executive Officer
. B.A. Business Studies, Westminster,
London, UK
M.B.A. (Marketing) City University,
London, UK
IOD Training Background : Directors Accreditation Program
(DAP) 57/2006
Understanding the Fundamental of
Financial Statements (UFS) 4/2006
No. of Share held as of 31 Dec. 2008
No. of Shares
1,040,000

Working Experience

Educational Background

% of Total Shares
0.125

Mr. Winson Moong Chu Hui

Position : President & Chief Operating Officer

Working Experience : 1988 — present, Executive Director

Educational Background : Bachelor of Engineering, Cheng
Kong University

IOD Training Background : -

No. of Share held as of 31 Dec. 2008
No. of Shares % of Total Shares
8,390,000 1.010

Mr. Terrence Philip Weir

Position . Executive Director & Chief Financial

Officer
: 1990 - present, Executive Director
: Bachelor of Economics, Macquarie
University, CPA, Australia
IOD Training Background : Director Certification Program (DCP)
6/2001, Diploma
No. of Share held as of 31 Dec. 2008
No. of Shares
175,000

Working Experience
Educational Background

% of Total Shares
0.021
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Mr. Voraphoj Thepvanaprasiddhi

Position . Independent Director
Working Experience : June 2000 - present, Independent
Director

Educational Background : Graduate Diploma, International

Business Administration WLU,

Ontario, Canada

Bachelor degree of Engineer,

Chulalongkorn University

Monitoring the Internal Audit

Function (MIA) 1/2007

Monitoring the System of Internal

Control and Risk Management (MIR)

1/2007

Director Certification Program (DCP)

53/2005

Finance for Non-Finance Director

(FND) 15/2005

Audit Committee Program (ACP) 5/2005

Director Accreditation Program (DAP)

30/2004

No. of Share held as of 31 Dec. 2008
No. of Shares
865,020

IOD Training Background :

% of Total Shares
0.104

Mr. Martin Enno Horn
Position

Working Experience
Educational Background

. Independent Director

. 2001 — present, Independent Director

: Bachelor of Electronic Engineering,
California Polytechnics, U.S.A.
AEA Executive Business Institute,
Stanford University, U.S.A

IOD Training Background : Directors Accreditation Program

(DAP) 57/2006
No. of Share held as of 31 Dec. 2008

No. of Shares % of Total Shares

Mr. Wing Keung Chow

Position . Vice President & General Manager
Hana-Lamphun

: 2001 - 2007, Vice President
Marketing & Customer Services
Hana-Lamphun

. Master Degree of Management, SASIN,
Chulalongkorn University

Working Experience

Educational Background

IOD Training Background :

No. of Share held as of 31 Dec. 2008
No. of Shares
1,112,300

% of Total Shares
0.134

Mr. Bruce Alan Stromstad

Position . Chef Technical Officer for Thailand
Operation

. 2004 — 2007 President of Hana
Microelectronics, Inc.

. Bachelor Degree - Electrical
Engineering, University of Wisconsin, USA

IOD Training Background : -

No. of Share held as of 31 Dec. 2008

No. of Shares

Working Experience

Educational Background

% of Total Shares
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The Board of Directors consists of six directors whom three of
them are independent directors. The board may review and
determine the size of the board that is most effective in relation to
future operations. It is a policy to have at least three independent
directors to be accounted to two-third of the board.

In addition to the Company’s Articles of Association, The
Board of Directors shall have the following responsibilities
and duties in line with the best practices of corporate
governance.

1) Approve the Company’s vision and mission and the
business plan

2) Review the performance of CEO and ensure that Executive
Committee carries out the policy and day-to-day operation
of the Company properly

3) Ensure that the internal control system and risk management
are sufficiently maintained and monitored

4) Oversee the conflict of interest that might be taking place
to be in line with the present regulations

5) Review and approve audited financial statement

6) Oversee the accurate and timely disclosure of information
to the public

7) Ensure that members of the board shall not use inside
information for personal benefits.

In conducting the business of the company, a director and
an executive shall perform his duty with responsibility, due care
and loyalty, and shall comply with all laws, the objectives, the
Articles of Association of the Company, the resolutions of The
Board of Directors and the resolutions of the shareholders’
meeting.

Board Committees:

The board currently has three committees — Executive
Committee, Audit Committee, and Nomination Committee in
fulfilling its responsibilities. Those three Committees have the
structure, term, and responsibilities as follows.

The Executive Committee:
Structure: The Committee currently comprises of three members.
Term: There is no term limit.

Mr. Richard David Han Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Winson Moong Chu Hui

Mr. Terrence Philip Weir

Chief Operating Officer

Chief Financial Officer

Authorities and responsibilities of the Executive

Committee Members:

1. Perform and manage the company’s business to comply
with the policies, mission and business plans as
determined by the Board of Directors

2. Determine budget and the management’s authorities of the
company

3. Monitor and follow up the operation of the company’s
policies to ensure its efficiency
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4. Monitor and follow up the performance of the company to
ensure its compliance with the business plan

5. Consider the large investment projects of the company
such as a joint venture, a construction of new plant etc.
and any significant transaction shall be proposed to the
board for approval

6. Perform other duties as assigned by the Board of Directors

Audit Committee:

Structure : The Audit Committee was formally established since
September 10, 1999. The Committee consists entirely of non-
executive directors, who are independent from Hana operations
and free from any relationship that might in the opinion of the
Board of Directors to be construed as a conflict of interest.

Term : The Chairman and members are appointed for an initial
term of two years.

Mr. Bancha Tarnprakorn Chairman
Mr. Voraphoj Thepvanaprasiddhi ~ Member
Mr. Martin Enno Horn Member

Authorities and responsibilities of the Audit Committee:

1. Oversee financial reporting process and the disclosure of
financial information to ensure accuracy, sufficiency and
creditability, by coordinating with the external auditors and
the management responsible for preparing the quarterly
and yearly financial reports

2. Review the Company’s Internal Control System and Internal
Audit System to ensure that they are suitable and efficient,
to determine an Internal Audit unit's independence, as well
as to approve the appointment, transfer and dismissal of
the chief of an internal audit unit

3. Review the Company’s compliance with the Law on
Securities and Exchange, The Stock Exchange of
Thailand’s regulations, and the laws relating to the
Company’s business

4. Consider, select and nominate an independent person to
be the Company’s auditor, and to propose such person’s
remuneration, as well as to attend a non-management
meeting with an auditor at least once a year

5. Review the Connected Transactions, or the transactions
that may lead to conflicts of interests, to ensure that they
are in compliance with the laws and the Exchange’s
regulations, and are reasonable and for the highest benefit
of the Company

6. Prepare, and to disclose in the Company’s annual report,
an audit committee’s report which must be signed by the
audit committee’s chairman

7. Consider other duties as defined by the Board of Directors

8. In its performance of duties, if it is found or suspected that
there is a transaction or any of the following acts which
may materially affect the Company’s financial condition
and operating results, the Audit Committee shall report it to
the Board of Directors for rectification within the period of

ANNUAL REPORT 2008 * HANA MICROELECTRONICS PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED 1 9
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Meetings

auaupsnslsegulull 2551
Total number of meetings in 2008

auauA N svga/Adaudantlszgulut 2551

SidaISaNMSINSoUUSBUNTUNSSUMSIIaUSIBUWNONU / Meetings of the Board, Board Committees and Shareholders:

ADUENITNNNTATIAAL
Audit Committee

time that the Audit Committee thinks fit. If the Company’s
Board of Directors or management fails to make a rectification
within the period of time under the first paragraph, any Audit
Committee Member may report on the transaction or act under
the first paragraph to the Office of the Securities and Exchange
Commission (SEC) or the Stock Exchange of Thailand (SET).

Nomination Committee:

Structure : The Nomination Committee was established in
November 2004. It consists of two independent directors and
one executive director. The Committee will at all time consist of a
majority of independent non-executive directors.

Term : The Chairman and members are appointed for the term
of two years.

Mr. Voraphoj Thepvanaprasidadhi ~ Chairman
Mr. Martin Enno Horn Member
Mr. Richard David Han Member

Authorities and responsibilities of the Nomination
Committee:
1. To ensure a formal and transparent procedure for the
appointments of new directors and key executives to the board
2. To make recommendations to the board on the independence
of any existing or proposed non-executive director
3. To review annually the size and composition of the board
and to recommend any proposed changes to the board

o v U
ANNTYHNAU
Annual General Meeting

ATUTNTINNITATINN
Nomination Committee

Number of meeting attended/participated in 2008
N334N191i31113:Executive Directors:

UNLTTTA LARA E1d 5
Mr. Richard David Han

WLAUAU 19 7 g8l B
Mr. Winson Moong Chu Hui

wemesisus Wayl Has 5

Mr. Terrence Philip Weir
N394N198492: Independent Directors:

UNETEMN NIUNTENT 5
Mr. Bancha Tarnprakorn

wngngIwall waunlaz@ns 5
Mr. Voraphoj Thepvanaprasiddhi

WaNsAu 1euly aadu 4*

Mr. Martin Enno Horn

4 1 1
n/a n/a 1
4 n/a 1
4 n/a 1
4 1 1
8 1 1

nasunsladnsandseguritunisinadnsiainsingilszina / Participated through conference call from overseas
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Appointment of Director

The board shall consist of directors who exercise sound
business judgment and process the business expertise,
knowledge, professional experiences, and have high standard
of integrity and are ready to exercise their duties. At least one
director has a financial background for membership of the Audit
Committee. In addition, the director shall not be a person who
violates any regulations stipulated by the Stock Exchange of
Thailand, the Securities and Exchange Commission or the
Company Articles of Association. The board shall consider the
proposal for appointment from the Nomination Committee before
recommend to the shareholders.

The newly appointed director shall get the orientation
regarding the company’s business, duties and responsibilities of
directors. The brief review shall be led by the chief executive
officer, chief financial officer or his appointee. All other
necessary information shall be given by the company secretary.

Service on Other Boards

In order to give proper attention and contribution to the
assigned responsibilities, the board believes that directors
including CEO should limit their services to sit on other boards
not more than five boards of publicly traded companies in
addition to Hana and its associate companies.

CEO and Board Evaluation

On an annual basis, the performance of CEO is evaluated
by the independent directors whilst the board shall conduct a
self-evaluation of its performance according to the criteria being
set. All directors are free to make suggestions to improve the
board’s performance.

Succession Plan

The board shall ensure having nomination systematic for
the proper candidate to replace significant director and
executive position level suitably and in line with the succession
planning policy. The Nomination Committee is appointed to
propose the appointments of new directors and key executives
(Chief Executive Officer, Chief Operating Officer and Chief
Financial Officer) to the board by considering for the proper
candidate person both from internal and external candidates.

Corporate Secretary to the Board

The corporate secretary is the primary liaison between the
corporation’s directors and management. The board has
formally appointed the corporate secretary on 11 August 2008 to
carry out the duties and responsibilities according to Section 89/
15 of Securities and Exchange Act No. 4 B.E. 2551. The
corporate secretary shall perform duties with care and
responsibility and in good faith as well as in compliance with all
laws, the objectives, the articles of association of the company,
and the resolutions of the Board of Directors and the
shareholders’ meeting.

ANNUAL REPORT 2008 * HANA MICROELECTRONICS PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED 21
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Hana Microelectronics Public Co., Ltd.
Register No. PLC 0107536000773
10/4 Moo 3 Vibhavadi-Rangsit Rd. Kwang Talad Bangkhen
Khet Laksi Bangkok 10210 Thailand
Tel. 02-551-1297, 02-521-4935-9
Fax: 02-551-1299, 02-552-4906

Type of business: Electronics
Number and Type of share issued:
Ordinary shares 830,474,960 Baht
Number of Treasury Stock 4,477,100 Shares (as of 31 Dec. 2008)
Number of Voting Stock 825,997,860 Shares (as of 31 Dec. 2008)

Nature of Business

Hana Microelectronics Public Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries
mainly involve a single industry segment in electronic
component and mainly carried on in the geographic area in
Thailand, Hong Kong, USA and China.

Business classification policy

The Group’s business operations are primarily
Microelectronics the assembly of components, sub-assemblies
and small electronic finished products. The major product
groups are printed circuit board assembly “PCBA”, integrated
circuit “IC” assembly and test, Light Emitting Diodes “LED”
assembly and Liquid Crystal on Silicon “LCoS” assembly with
factories in Thailand, China and USA.

Dividend Policy

The dividend policy to pay shareholders is 30-100 % of
appropriated earnings of the Company and its subsidiaries. For
the dividend policy of the subsidiaries to pay the Company is O-
100% of appropriated earnings.

(Unit: Million Baht)

2 o @ o o Ay = 2549 2550 2551
NARNTUN muumu‘imﬂ % mmmummumw
PRODUCT COMPANY % OF HOLDING e — —
° REVENUE % REVENUE %  REVENUE %
IC HS — AYT & HM - JX 100% 5,574 37 5,280 34 5,046 £6
CPG HS — BKK 100% 1,939 13 1,831 12 1,626 1"
PCBA HM - LPN & HM - JX 100% 7,318 49 8,408 54 8,308 516
MICRODISPLAY HMT - USA 100% 174 1 116 1 125 1
TOTAL 15,005 100 15,635 100 15,105 100
HM-LPN = Hana Microelectronics Public Co., Ltd. HM-JX = Hana Microelectronics (JiaXing) Co., Ltd.
HS-BKK = Hana Semiconductor (BKK) Co., Ltd. HMT = Hana Microdisplay Technologies
HS-AYT = Hana Semiconductor (Ayutthaya) Co., Ltd.

InsvaswmsiioAu la:msvams / Shareholding Structure and Management
neviunelvn) deya i Sullnayanzidauaigs s 5uh 9 wWneu 2551 / Major Shareholders as of the latest closing registration book on 9 April 2008

2 £

BUAU: uumﬁiy / Type of Shares: Ordinary shares

q q

Aa101 / No %8 / Name AU / No. of Share (%)
1. OMAC (HK) LIMITED 135 lauum a1in RAINBOW JOY LIMITED 253,419,360 30.52
2 STATE STREET BANK AND TRUST COMPANY FOR LONDON 87,522,500 10.54
3 HSBC PRIVATE BANK (SUISSE) SA 28,320,100 3.41
4 BNP PARAIBAS SECURITIES SERVICES LUXEMBOURG 27,320,300 3.29
5, FORTIS GLOBAL CUSTODY SERVICES N.V. 24,501,300 2.95
6. N.C.B.TRUST LIMITED-RBS AS DEP FOR FS 19,672,800 2.37
7 HSBC (SINGAPORE) NOMINEES PTE LTD 17,642,598 2.13
8 nawuitla aweshuinm 15,857,000 1.91
9 SOMERS (U.K.) LIMITED 15,424,600 1.86
10 STATE STREET BANK AND TRUST COMPANY FOR AUSTRALIA 11,899,000 1.43
WNNEA

L aAU (1) AefDevunguiReaniuaiunnng 258 uiiwsu udnninduaznaianannsndustlsznalne (aifuf 4) w.e. 2551
1

Remark: No. (1) is related companies under Section 258 of the Securities and Exchange Act (No. 4) B.E. 2551
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Number of shares held by the company
in subsidiary companies

No. of Shares
Subsidiary Company

Hana Semiconductor (BKK) Company Limited 99,999,994
10/4 Moo 3, Vibhavadi-Rangsit Rd. Kwang Talad

Bangkhen, Khet Laksi, Bangkok 10210

Tel: (02) 551-1297 fax : (02) 551-1299

Type of business : Electronics

Hana Semiconductor (Ayutthaya) Company Limited 69,999,993
100 Moo 1, T. Ban Lane, A. Bangpain, Ayutthaya

13160

Tel: (035) 350170-7 fax : (035) 350805-6

Type of business : Electronics

Hana Microelectronics International Company Limited 2
P.O. Box 71, Craigmuir Chambers, Road Town,

Tortola, British Virgin Islands

Type of business: Trading products

Hana Microelectronics Investment Company Limited 2
P.O. Box 71, Craigmuir Chambers, Road Town,

Tortola, British Virgin Islands

Type of business: Investment

Omac Sales Limited 99,999
16E, On Fook Industrial Building, 41-45 Kwai Fung
Crescent, Kwai Chung, N.T., Hong Kong

Type of business: Purchasing and Marketing

Hana Technologies Group Limited 2
Maples and Calder, Attorneys-at-Law, Ugland House,

P.O. Box 309, George Town, Cayman, Cayman

Islands, British West Indies

Type of business: Investment

References

Auditor:

Ernst & Young office, Ltd.,

33rd Fl., Lake Rajada Office Complex,
193/136-137 New Rajadapisek Road,
Bangkok 10110 Thailand

Tel.: 02-264-0777

Fax: 02-264-0790

Solicitors:

Damrongtham Law Office

63 Soi 8 (Soi Preeda),

Sukhumvit Road,

Bangkok 10110 Thailand

Tel.: 02-255-2550-2, 02-653-1133-4
Fax: 02-653-1135, 02-253-3427

Share Registrar:
Thailand Securities Depository

62 Rachadapisek Road,

Klongtoey, Bangkok 10110 Thailand
Tel.: 02-229-2800

Fax: 02-359-1259
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The long-term success of a company is largely determined
by the support we earn from our customers, investors,
employees, business partners, and local community. To
strengthen stakeholders’ confidence, Hana is committed to good
corporate governance by compliance with the best practices of
corporate governance wherever possible and practical for the
company. The corporate governance policy, which is published
on the company’s website, provides the guidelines under which
the Board of Directors operates. We will continue to seek
improvements to our solid foundation in good corporate
governance.

A compliance program is an important element in
the corporate governance. In 2008, Hana complied
with good corporate governance principles as
follows.

1. Rights of Shareholders

Hana recognizes the importance of shareholders’ rights
and treats all shareholders equitably, fairly and in line with
relevant laws. All shareholders have the equal rights for each
class of shares to receive the dividend payment, to buy, sell and
transfer shares including the right to access or obtain the
company’s information disclosed to shareholders and the public.
All shareholders have the right to attend the shareholders’
meetings and are eligible to vote in accordance with the voting
rights of the respective share class of their share holdings. There
are no actions that violate the right of shareholders, such as not
changing or adding agenda items without notifying shareholders
in advance or which limit the access to the company’s
information that is released to public. The company also assists
shareholders beyond what is required by laws covering their
rights, such as arranging company visits so that shareholders or
interested persons can have the opportunity to understand more
about the company and our operations.

To encourage shareholders to exercise their rights in
shareholders’ meeting, the company takes actions as follows.

Before the meeting day:

The company holds the general meeting of shareholders
within 4 months after financial year ends. In 2008, the company
held the Meeting on 30 April 2008 at 10:30 A.M. at the
Headquarters office. We handed over to Thailand Securities
Depository Co., Ltd. or “TSD” which was the company’s
securities deposit registrar to send the notice of shareholders’
meeting within 17 days prior to the meeting date in order to
provide sufficient time for shareholders to review the agenda.
The notice of meeting expressly indicated the matters to be
tabled at the meeting, whether for acknowledgement, approval
or consideration, including the board’s opinion on each agenda.
Other supporting information and documents were also attached
to the notice. In addition to the direct delivery, the notice of
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meeting was made available to the shareholders through the
company’s website (http://www.hanagroup.com) 30 days in
advance of the meeting date and the notice of meeting was
published through SET’s information system or “ELCID” in both
Thai and English versions, which were the same as the original
notice mailed to shareholders.

On the meeting day:

The quorum, voting procedures and voting count method
are clearly informed to the meeting prior to discuss the agenda
items. For the annual general meeting conducted in 2008, 6 out
of 7 directors could attend the meeting. Those key directors
were the Chairman of the Board and Audit Committee, Chief
Executive Officer, and the Chairman of the Nomination
Committee. The Chief Financial Officer and external auditor also
attended the meeting so that they could listen to shareholders’
opinions or suggestions and also answer any questions.

The Board of Directors allowed shareholders to elect each
director eligible for election on individual basis. The directors
who had interests related to the issuance of ESOP Warrants
agenda were not eligible to vote on the agenda. At the time of
voting, the ballot is used and kept for evidence and verification.
Shareholders shall be given opportunity to raise questions,
recommendations as well as opinions on the company’s
performance or other concerns on equitable basis.

After the meeting day:

The meeting minutes recording the course of the meeting
and all issues discussed at the meeting, the results of
shareholder voting on each agenda and the decisions made by
the meeting are made available within the appropriate time to
the shareholders. The minutes of the annual general meeting in
2008 was posted to the company’s website within a following
business day after the meeting and at the same time sent to the
Stock Exchange of Thailand. If shareholders have any inquiries
or comments on the minutes, they can contact to the corporate
secretary. The minutes are maintained at the Company’s head
office.

2. Equitable Treatment of Shareholders

The company ensures fair treatment of shareholders
irrespective of size of holdings. All of shareholders, in respect of
each class of shares, are entitled to the same dividend
payments, and have equal rights in the event of share capital
increases. The company’s shareholder meetings are open to all
shareholders, and all shares of the same class have the same
voting rights. Voting at the annual shareholders’ meeting is done
by the principle of one share one vote. Shareholders, who
cannot attend the shareholders’ meeting, can authorize our
independent directors on their behalf to attend the meeting and
voting through the proxy forms. One of our mechanisms is to
allow shareholders to propose candidates for election to the
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board and propose items for the agenda of annual general
meeting in advance. The company’s annual shareholders
meeting conducted in 2008 offered opportunity for shareholders
to add items to the agenda and resolutions for the meeting
including propose candidates to be elected for directors from
October — December before the board of director meeting to
consider and approve agenda and resolutions prior to propose
to shareholders’ meeting. The procedures and criteria to
nominate the director to the board and propose items for the
agenda for the annual general meeting have been posted to the
company’s website. However, in 2008 there were no
shareholder proposals sent to the Board of Directors for
consideration.

The company has policy to prevent directors and
executives to take advantage of inside information to dishonest
dealing for themselves and their related parties. Insider trading
is prohibited. Hana has the policy to prevent the use of inside
information for personal benefits as follows.

Inform Board of Directors and management of the duty to
report properly and timely any transactions of the Company
securities’ holdings to the board in addition to reporting to the
Securities Exchange Commission (SEC) under the Securities
and Exchange Act B.E. 2535 and the Stock Exchange of
Thailand’s regulation as well as the penalty for non-compliance.

Inform board of director and management by a circular
letter that they who may gain inside information should avoid
trading the Company’s securities for the period of one month
before the Company announces its financial statements to the
public and at least 24 hours after the information is widely
spread out to the pubilic.

The directors and executives of the company have
complied with this policy strictly. There was no violation of the
trading shares during the prohibited period in 2008.

Further, the Board of Directors has established
procedures for directors and executives to disclose their
interests and those of their related parties to the Board of
Directors and exclude those directors and executives from
decision making involving transactions in which they have
interests or are connected. The board assigns the Audit
Committee to be responsible for receiving reports from directors
and executives to disclose their interests and those of their
related parties for initially review and monitoring and then
reporting to the board. In 2008, the company required all
directors and executives to disclose their interests and those of
their related parties to the board for review and consideration.

3. Roles of Stakeholders

Hana recognizes the rights of stakeholders. The company
is dedicated to the achievement of equality of opportunity for all
of its employees. All employees will be employed solely
according to their ability to meet the position requirements. A
Career Path Development Program is provided to selected
employees for learning and development opportunities to grow.
The company has provided various welfare programs for
employees such as provident funds, health benefits, children
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educational assistance for lower-pay employees, meal
allowance, etc.

Hana places the highest value on our customers. The
company aims to meet or exceed our customers’ expectation for
product quality, delivery, reliability, and competitive prices.
There is a Customer Service Department available for dealing
with customers and to monitor progress of our commitments.

Hana promotes fair and open competition and aims at
developing and securing long term relationship with suppliers
and contractors. Material, product and service purchases will be
considered for the quality of materials, products and services in
accordance with the respective product requirements. The
company abides by its obligations to all creditors. The Board of
Directors, management and employees are expected to
exercise diligence in their duties with all business partners
including creditors. The company conducts business fairly and
shall not deceive, discredit or use unethical means to gain
advantage from the company’s business competitors.

The company attempts to achieve growth in earnings for
shareholders over the long term. We have the Safety,
Occupation Health, Environmental and Social Policy. We aim to
preserve the environment, care for our employees and on
matters of safety, occupational health and adhere to social
responsibility with respect to the business. The company
commits to integrate environmentally safe practices into all
aspects of our daily activities by having effective programs to
minimize environmental impact through conservation of
resources and materials, administering and establishing
responsible methods for the use and disposal of hazardous
substances to prevent pollution, nurturing our environment
through continuous improvements in compliance with all
applicable laws and regulation. We also ensure the compliance
with our customers’ specifications concerning to safety,
occupation health, hygiene and social responsibility. In 2008, we
participated in the Clean Technology Program with Chiangmai
University to support students for applying the technology to
reduce waste in the company’s production floors. Our staff
successfully implemented programs to minimize the amount of
hazard wastes and un-recycled waste of over 20 tons. Last year,
we completely met the environmental standard to control air
pollution and waste water in the factory. In addition, the record
of accidents in the working place was lower than the target.

Hana provides channels for stakeholders to communicate
any concerns about illegal or any complaints regarding to
activities or conduct of the company or any of its staff or
business partners relating to the company. Stakeholders can
report such complaint or concern in good faith directly to the
Audit Committee of the Board of Directors. The procedure for
handling complaints (Whistleblower Policy) has been
established and published in the company’s website.

4. Disclosure and Transparency

The company will make its effort to disclose information
broadly and proactively through channels of communication that
allow equal access to market participants. New information that
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is likely to materially influence the valuation of the company’s
shares shall be disclosed to the market immediately through the
SET’s system and the company’s website. In 2008, there was no
violation that Hana breached the disclosure rules and
regulations.

It is critical to have as much information as can be
available so that continuous evaluation of investment
performance may be conducted. The company will make its
effort to disclose information broadly and proactively through
channels of communication that allow equal access to market
participants. New information that is likely to materially influence
the valuation of the company’s shares shall be disclosed to the
market immediately through the SET’s system and the
Company’s website.

The company has not set up the Investor Relations
Department, but the company’s executive directors are actively
involved in the role o f investor relations on a continuous basis
as the company believes that their ability to deliver confident
and clear presentation is as important a skill as technical and
managerial capabilities. The Corporate Affairs Department is
also available to provide basic information upon request. The
company usually arranges an analyst meeting each quarter to
inform the investor community of the financial result and also
clarify all inquiries from Institutional Investors, Fund Managers
and analysts who attend the meeting. Additionally, company
visits by interested analysts are also welcome and can be
arranged by appointment. All investors can access the
company'’s financial information through the SET’s Public
disclosure system and at company’s website: http://
www.hanagroup.com, or contact to following person.

5. Responsibilities of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors consists of 6 directors which are 3
executive directors and 3 independent directors. The chairman
of the board is not the same person who holds the Chief
Executive Officer position and the chairman is an independent
director. The board has considered that the current the board
structure is suitable as comparing to authority and responsibility
for managing the company’s business. Executive Directors are
professional and gaining high experiences in business
management. Directors who are non-executives have

da AU B-Lua TnsAnws nsans
Name Position E-mail address Phone number Fax number
wenesisus Wad Bas Fautideniaku
» . L ) . terry@hanabk.th.com 02-5511297 02-5511299
Mr. Terrence Philip Weir Chief Financial Officer
L4, A3TN AN LAUYNITLTEN )
. ? jirapak@hanabk.th.com 02-5511297 ext. 117 02-5511299
Ms. Jirapa Kongmanee Corporate Secretary
wd. WoyAna Ating Corporate Affairs ,
penpimol_k@hanabk.th.com 02-5511297 ext. 226 02-5511299

Ms. Penpimol Kotchabhakdi Officer
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knowledge and skillful in various fields of business. All directors
devote their time to the serve the board especially for making
decisions significant to the company’s interests. The board
delegates to the executive committee the authority and
responsibility for managing the company’s day-to-day business.
The company’s business is managed under the direction of the
Board of Directors. The board’s role is to establish policies for
business and management strategies, corporate governance
policy which the board evaluates those policies annually, the
code of conduct, and monitor managerial performance. The
board has approved the separation of duties and authorization
of Executive Committee and management such as approval
limits of day-to-day operational expenses. However, such
authorization shall not include that where the grantee can
approve the transaction of which he or she is a person who
might have any conflict, interest with the company or its
subsidiaries regarding such transaction.

The Board of Directors gives emphasis on the transparency
of director nomination. The company has the policy to give right
to shareholders to propose appropriate candidates for election to
the board. The Nomination Committee is responsible for review
the qualification and performance of candidates or those
directors who retired by rotation. In 2008, there was no proposal
for candidates sent by shareholders to the Nomination Committee
to review. Therefore, the board considered those directors who
retired by rotation and which the board considers based on their
qualification, working experiences, previous year performances,
willingness and time devoted to the board are suitable to be
considered for re-election.

To ensure that the board includes such directors who can
exercise their best judgment, all independent directors shall be
affirmatively determined that such director meets the requirement
established by the Securities Exchange of Commission (SEC). In
particular, an independent director is a director who:

* hold shares less than 1% of the number of shares
eligible to vote

* is not an executive director, employee, or consultant
who receives remuneration from the company or any of its
subsidiaries, who is also neither a controlling person of the
company or subsidiaries nor a related person at least for the past
one (1) year

* has no business relationship or receives benefits directly
or indirectly from both financial and management of the company,
any its subsidiaries, or related person that deprives such
independence

* is not an immediate family member of management,
major shareholder of the company and any of its subsidiary, nor
any person who might have a conflict of interest and is not
appointed as a representative to preserve the interests of the
company’ s director and major shareholders

ANNUAL REPORT 2008 * HANA MICROELECTRONICS PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED 29




KaNMsAAUQIANDMSAG
Corporate Governance

ADU:OUNSSUMS

ﬂmvnﬁumiummmrmﬂmvaummmsmmwﬂguwmw
‘v]mmmmm AUZAYNITNNINNINNA 3 TAABAUTNITUNNT
LIMNT ATUZNITUNTATIAEAL WATATUZNTINNNTATIVN

Anznssumsdaaiulfinssunnsilallgnssunisiduns Snns
Fadszquinefldddravsuindndezgu Tnunssunasitlaily
NIFUNITUIMITAINNTARAN TN MUANTsUszgaenidunig
lawnziefiansoun wanulasuauAnfiutazBnuuiselaed
laifdhavsmadnsandsegusae

AoWIAIEOMYWaUs:TaBsU
ARLENSTNNNTEN W AR ANNs AnfiuuasFaAuladiu
93Nl UAANHAMINUANIUA WAL mmﬁ@ﬂiuimﬂmmmmmﬁﬂi
mvmwmimmmmm@vmnL@mmimvmmﬂﬂimnmmm
Tautaarunatlszlaad u@ﬂmummmwﬁmwuﬁ@ummqmu
9INAUATATIALATIVBINITNNNS flanaazdanaliifiananudaud
FrunalselaminuLsEn ﬂi?umirﬁl’mmmmmmﬁmﬁuﬁ“ﬁqnmq
mwwimmmamuummmmﬂm”wm@ummuumm'ima?mm@
2NN ﬁmlunqim'}m@mmmuuﬂmwmwmqmmmma
nadszladil azfaaiIunITAAITUIAINANZNTTNNNIATIAADL
LAZANNAMLLNITUNITLTEN
ATNUNIELUALTENBUILNITINU immsﬁiﬁ@ﬁuu?ﬁwﬁ
mmmmﬂuhmmmu@vwmmuifm sﬁ\ﬂmmmmw@m‘lﬁmmﬂ
mamsmmwnummmwa LazLEENeaesine FiRma :ennsd
mmul.ﬂmwmiﬁm@ﬂnmnumwmﬂ sn\ﬂuﬂﬂlmnmmmmmm
mqm@ﬂiﬂmu“lm FaisnennsrsndnafuiiRn AU TR0
fiuAe Paniadningdusznaneiu lnadidny ldanasvindyon
iR ALANLEE TauuA 1R F9nssuntsBasyilacnuiudn
Lfilﬂuiwmj ?{ivuiﬁuﬁmm%ﬂf] mmzﬁmmwz’v’nﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁqiﬂ
uay @mmmﬂﬂummmm'ﬁﬁm Lum@'mLﬂu@mmmmnumlfm
fii3m Taunm s1in mﬂunummmmu mﬂumﬂ@mﬂu@ﬂm
VLmummmmmmlm ALLTHEN

ssuumsnounuMElulasmsmsovaouMmeiu

Anuznssin st AsuRnTeulunisiuuakazinE sz
nsauann el 1wl 2551 Anznssunisdinistszifiumnnuiiies
wazessruuniAtLANNelu Tneinnisdssiduninu s
AHINENNDTRNTY uumimuﬂumﬂslummumwmemwm (self
assessment) Imﬂmmm”l,mﬂiuﬂ;ammﬂmmmmﬂmwgme
Uszinelng daldfinnsaeuniuaniuiilszdniuaesszuunis
mummmﬂudawﬁm AB BIANILAZANTNLIARAN NITLFUNT
ANNIRLS ma‘mumumiﬂgummmmmﬁmmi SLULRTAVINA
LL@“’T‘]’]?@@@’]T’H@N@ 3NTNsTULINNIRARIN TetlSEmTununnss
T AWV ONE S
AamalsfinnafiRauszuiiandd anignssunieusamliinag
fsandouiugnmaseunelunasfidmsisanuiisz@ninm
m@mmumamumumﬂlu uﬂﬂmnuﬂmmﬁumﬁmimLme\ﬂ,‘w
Hanie ﬂﬁmma‘mmimmLamLWﬂmLuuma‘mquamﬁmi
Uisaanades ieliusreTngUszassiaziuladnsmiing
dszifiu mmﬂmvmmmmummlma‘lmmumamnim

30  seoulssU 2008 *  usuN own IuRsoEANsTAE FIa (UnIsL)

Committee

The Board of Directors has established committees to
carry out various critical responsibilities. There are 3 sub-
committees: Executive Committee, Audit Committee, and
Nomination Committee.

The board promotes non-executive directors to have a
separate meeting in absence of management as determined by
the non-executive directors as to encourage more open
discussion without management present.

Conflict of Interests
The fiduciary duty of directors is to exercise their business

judgment to act in a manner that they reasonably believe to be

the best interests of the company. They also are expected to
avoid any action that conflicts with any interest of the company
or that gives the appearance of a conflict. Each director’s other
relationships, including business and family may occasionally
give rise to the perception that the individual has a material,
personal interest on a particular issue involving the company. It
is the company policy that the Board and Audit Committee shall
determine on a case-by-case basis whether a conflict of interest
actually exists and takes appropriate steps to identify such
potential conflicts.

Under the Note for, Related Party Transactions, of the
consolidated financial statements discloses relevant detail of
related party transactions entered into by the Company and its
subsidiaries. The majority of the related party transactions were
entered into in the normal course of business by the company
and by definition these cannot give rise to a conflict of interest.
The only transaction involving an associated company is a lease
of land by the company from Omac Limited. The terms of this
lease appear to be arms length normal commercial terms in view
of their being consistent with the lease terms paid for the same
property by Omac Limited to a third party.

Controlling system and Internal Audit

The Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and
maintaining the internal control system. In 2008, the board has
performed self-assessment to evaluate the internal control
system by applying the control assessment criteria from the
Stock Exchange of Thailand. The major parts of organizational
control and environment, risk management, management control
activities, information and communication and monitoring are
measured. There is an internal audit department which directly
reports to Audit Committee to monitor the company’s
compliance with the established systems. The Board of
Directors reviews the effectiveness of internal controls with the
internal auditors and management. The Risk Management
Committee has been appointed to ensure implementation of the
risk management policy to be monitored and limited overall risks
at an acceptable level.

The board believes that existing internal control systems
are achieving their objectives and that they provide reasonable
assurance concerning the accuracy of financial statements, the
safeguard of assets against loss or unauthorized use, and the
assurance of transactions that are executed consistent with
company policies and procedures.



ﬂmvﬂﬁmmimumiwuumimmumﬂiuwmHmammm
‘vm’mLL@ummm‘lummmu‘lfﬂummmmwmmmmmwmu
nslesiuinmmindauressimannsgyevsenislilaed
F9y PaNvenen961e) WinsUfuRnwssilauwasdenivun
2RILTHENY

DS545SSUBSNY

ﬂmznﬁumimmmfﬁi@:ﬂaxﬂ@ugiﬁ@‘ﬂmmlﬁﬁmmgm
ngm%\mwé’m@?ﬂﬁiwLL@‘:miﬂﬁﬁ’ﬁmu%’@ﬂgumwm’] 7
Wiendies UsimdensednsBianazlifuinng auznssunisuFim
LL@”wuﬂmummmmqm@ﬁmmmlumamLuuﬁ@ﬂmﬂwan
GRLLI] mumtﬂmmmimuumlmuiﬂmﬂLma,awmﬂuﬂ{]umLa‘m
AIELFITNGINA Lw'aLflul,l,mwmlumiﬁgummﬂLmﬁmmmqmu
M@ﬂ’%‘ﬂﬁi"iuLL@vﬂQMN’]f_IGLuﬂ’]ﬁ‘ﬂ’]Luuﬁﬁ‘ﬂ’w’ﬂ\‘i'ﬂ\‘iﬂﬂ’mﬂﬂﬂLN?;I
unsuuiulafaasuzdng Auamsuazmiinauninugnaduayy
idnsdfuRmuuaninuaingneld nasianiunisdjumRniuman
insiazaiiunsladuinnsssiuge winldoenliiinnmnszin
fidasanguuiauazAassu Wﬁfﬂmuﬁcﬂlﬂ?lmuﬂﬂuﬂﬁﬁﬁlﬁ'm
s3uassugsnia adldfunisaalnemiedile Teenasufianisgnauga
nafuminanu wummwmvmmummmmwmmwwmum
Sy FnaEdn sty

msUs:BUANUNSSUNMS
‘Lum@ﬂsuﬂmmeuﬂmmﬁummnmuﬂimuiuu@ﬂmﬁ
ﬂwmm\immumwmimmm ’N‘i ﬂﬁ“].l‘ﬂx‘]ﬂﬂi‘«)ﬁm Tuﬂ 2551 ll
ﬂ']i“]J?JHNﬂmwﬂﬁ‘j‘umim‘iﬂm"w 5 m\i ﬂa‘wﬁ’mmmmﬁumﬂmw
ﬂivﬁ’]ulliﬁ']i@ LﬂuNﬂ’muﬁQ’]ﬁ‘zﬂ’]i‘ﬂﬁ‘vﬂm ﬂi‘ﬁ‘Nﬂ’]i“V]’]uﬂu’ﬂ’]'ﬂ
AT U mLiﬂﬂwﬂQimﬂ@muquLmumm@nmmmmﬂmms
‘]J?J]JN'Q m“l:wmmmw wnmuwmsm%ﬂumimwm LW'ﬂ
Lﬂuﬂﬁﬁ‘Lﬁli‘ﬁNﬁlQﬂ'ﬂuLﬂl’lﬂiJﬂN UiHV]Nﬂ’]i‘@ﬂVHL@ﬂ@’]i‘ﬂﬁ‘wﬂﬂu
ﬂﬂiﬂiw"ﬁm 183 b4 mﬂmumiﬂiummﬂmmﬁumiwumavmﬂmmu
mwmwumm‘“lummmmmmu LL@wNinUﬂﬁi‘@mLﬂUﬂmﬂﬁﬁiu
Iﬂﬂ‘j‘ﬁ‘mﬂﬁi‘LL@zﬁ‘ﬂLﬂﬁ?‘ﬂ@d[ﬁliﬁ@@ﬂ'ﬁLQ

AMNOUIINUNSSUMS

ummmiuimmmmm ZNITUNITAINUAAIADLUNU
Lummﬂﬂm nsTUNTITIAMIEAL ugRanmndineuunuyes
N998N"3 mummfauLmuﬂﬁumamm’lmumiwmsmﬁmeﬂum
Tnefiariu mwwmuiﬂmmmmmuLmumwmﬂmﬂm@wwv
miummmﬂuiﬂmﬂﬂivwLL@WTuu'A fagnsnaz wansineiuAI
2BULIAANNTUNATELIDILAREYAAR nssuNTIAuALALTY

KANMSAAUQIANDMSAG
Corporate Governance

Business Ethics

The Board of Directors attempts to operate its worldwide
business in accordance with the highest ethical standards and
relevant laws. The company expects and requires that its
directors, officers and employees perform their duties with the
highest standards of integrity in the conduct of business.
Therefore, corporate code of conduct has been written as the
company policy and procedure in order to provide the general
guidance for those in recognizing and resolving ethical and
legal issues while conducting the company’s business. The
company'’s extract of the written code of conduct is available on
the company website. All directors and employees are notified
and encouraged to comply with the set codes. The compliance
to the code of conduct is regularly monitored by senior
management. The company shall not tolerate any illegal or
unethical acts. Anyone violating the code of conduct will be
disciplined, which may include termination of employment.
Channels of complaint are also opened to all employees.

Board of Directors’ Meetings

The total number of directors attending the meeting must
be no less than one half of the total number of directors to
constitute a quorum. In 2008, the company had 5 meetings. The
chairman of the board or CEO sets the agenda of meetings of
the board. Any director may suggest agenda items and may
raise at meetings other matters that they consider importance of
discussion. Information and data to the board’s understanding of
the business to be discussed at meetings are distributed in
advance of meetings, to the extent practicable. To prepare for
meetings, directors are responsible for reviewing the materials
that are sent to them in advance. The related document and
minutes of Board of Directors meeting are properly prepared
within appropriate time and well maintained at the company’ s
head office for reference.

Remuneration for Directors

The company has not set up the Remuneration Committee
as the board would like to consider and review as a whole board
before propose to shareholders’ meeting for approval. The
company provides the remuneration to the independent
directors in forms of meeting allowances and bonus of which the
rates are up to the responsibilities of the members. The directors
who are the executive directors only receive the remuneration as
the company management or as employee. The Remuneration
for directors has been compared with the rate of the same
industry and the structure of the remuneration of the company.
The total remuneration of directors had been approved by
shareholders from the annual shareholders’” meeting on 30 April
2008.

Remuneration for executives

Basis of key executive remuneration — The Company is to
ensure that executive remuneration enhance our ability to
attract, retain and motivate competent and experience staff.
Remuneration of executives comprises of base salary and bonus
which are basically the same standard as employees. The
performance-based has been recognized for the legitimate
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difference in roles, individual contribution, complexity and
responsibility of the position they hold. Determination of our
executive reward has been benchmarked with the market
competitiveness in the same industry.

The remuneration of 5 executive managements presented
below includes the executive directors name (4) — (6), Mr. WK
Chow and Mr. Bruce Alan Stromstad.

TIEAL Lﬂﬂmmm@uuWu%@dn?mmmE/mﬁu?’lﬂli_/ﬁﬂ@ NeWN1 / Individual disclosure of remuneration for the Board is as follows.

da AU
Position

Name

1. WIERTnyn NIuneENg
Mr. Bancha Tarnprakorn

2. wieasnarl mnaulsz@ng
Mr. Voraphoj Thepvanaprasiddhi

3. Waunfhiu 1eulu aafu
Mr. Martin Enno Horn

4. uneiFEa 1oRn & NIINNITLINIT, NITUNNTATINN

Mr. Richard David Han

N9INNTLITUNT
Executive Director

5. el 39 7 g8
Mr. Winson Moong Chu Hui

N37UNITLITUNT
Executive Director

6. wienasisus WAyl Raf

Mr. Terrence Philip Weir
UNEILUG / Remark:
N334N19LIUNT (4)
Executive Directors named (4)

dszinnAmauuny / Type of remuneration ]719U Amount

RulAew / Salary 16,616,107
{utia / Bonus 7,730,000
Lﬂﬂﬂiz‘g&l / Board Allowance -
393 / Total 24,346,107
AmouInudU
. X 4 o 4 -
N UANIRAENTN — ludaunilareslasanisnad szl
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1l9287UN79UNN9, NIINN3BATY, 1T281UNTTNNTATIAAAL
Chairman of Board, Independent Director, Chairman of the Audit Committee

ﬂi‘iNﬂ’]i‘?ﬂ’m‘t, NITUNTATINADL, 13LaUNITNNTATIVN
Independent Director, Audit Committee, Chairman of Nomination Committee

NIINNIRATE, NTINNITATIAAAL, NITUNITATINN
Independent Director, Audit Committee, Nomination Committee

Executive Director, Nomination Committee

Tuid (un)
Bonus (Baht)

L'ﬁﬂﬂi:‘qu (1)
Meeting Allowance (Baht)

300,000 100,000
180,000 60,000
150,000 60,000

- (6) IaFuAmauunuludauaeIN A seEL M LRI B 9LTEN
- (6) receive the remuneration as the company’s management/employees.

Other Remuneration:

There is a provident fund which is a part of incentive
programs to offer management and employees a secure income
in the case of death, disability, resignation or retirement. The
company contributes at the rate of 3 - 7.5 percent of their
salaries depending on the length of year service with the
company.
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Corporate Social Responsibility

Hana recognizes that our long-term success depends on our
ability to manage operations soundly and efficiently in an
increasingly complex environment, and to make contribution to
society through creating value for our stakeholders. Therefore, we
aim to ensure that the company operates in a socially and
environmentally responsible manner.

Educational Support:

Hana supports educational institutions for the General
Apprenticeship and Cooperative Education Program with the
collaboration among 15 colleges and universities in Thailand and
abroad for example, Chulalongkorn University, Sirindhorn
International Institute of Technology: Thammasat University,
Mahidol University, Kasetsart University, Suranaree University of
Technology, King Mongkut’s Institute of Technology North
Bangkok, Donmaung Technical College and City University of
Hong Kong, etc. We also organized the Cooperative Education
Program for 33 undergraduate engineering students and other
fields with the company allowances about Baht 714,000.

Hana applied the Competency-based approach to the
recruitment, selection and training in order to match the students to
the job competencies. We provided the internship students with
theoretical and practical training, on-the-job training, Technical
Competency-based Development Program, projects assignments,
etc. Those programs helped students to gain opportunities and
working experience in the realistic environment under the guidance
and expertise of the factory staff, managers and teachers in the
university. Meanwhile, the mentors have the potential opportunity to
exchange technical knowledge with the students and professors.
Meanwhile, Hana gets the benefits as follows:

» Developing at least 30 projects by students with the
coaching from mentors and professors in applying initiative ideas
and new technology to the workplace

* Having the potential opportunity to utilize the new tools/
technology/ equipment or laboratory installed in the colleges and
universities, for example, X-Ray Analytical Microscope, (SEM)
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Corporate Social Responsibility
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Scanning Electron Microscope, FTIA (Fourier Transform Infrared
Spectrometry) for root cause analysis.

» Having qualified candidates for further consideration of
recruitment with minimum training need

» Strengthening company relations with universities and
students. Hana can work with universities to ensure an effective
curriculum in relation to supporting the company requirements.

Staff Training and Development Program:

Providing our employees with continuous training and
development program helps ensure that the Company will continue
to have the skill and management capabilities to meet the
Company core competencies and future business needs. A
comprehensive training and development program, both internal
and external classes, including Technical Competency-Based
Development (TCBD) Program, Engineering Forum, Career Path
Development Program and Multi-skills Training have greatly
contributed to ensure that each department within the company
derives maximum benefits from the skills/ competencies of its
human resources, build morale and retain the potential employees
in order to impeccable service and support to satisfy customers.

Social contribution:

Hana Lamphun took on-going support for the blood donation
program of the Thai Red Cross Society. In 2008, over 600
employees from 4-time participation donated more than 230,000
CC. of blood to help support the demand for patients nationwide and to
build up a sufficient blood reserve. In cooperation with the BOI
Office in Chiangmai, the Company provided 75 sets of canteen
bench to the Alumni Association of Sathit School at Chiangmai
University for their social activity purpose. To support the patient
projects, 80 kgs. of the pull tabs on aluminum cans regularly
collected by our employees were donated to Prosthesis Foundation.

Environmental Management:

In line with our environmental policy and in response to the
issue of global warming, Hana has been taking efforts by adopting
“reducing, reusing and recycling” programs to protect the
environmental impact. We continue to pursue policies to reduce
energy usage in the workplace from the office through
manufacturing shop-floor by improving the efficiency of machines
and equipment, adjusting the temperature of cooling system,
avoiding electricity usage during on-peak demand, reducing
resources and chemical usage including recycling the used water.

In 2008, various projects of energy saving both in Thailand
and China factories enable us to reduce particularly electricity,
water and gas usage. The contributed on-going reductions have
resulted in a total saving of electricity over 17M Baht which was
accounted for 5.14%. As the group achievement, we can reduce
the greenhouse gas emission by 3,569 tons. From water saving
program, we save over 2M or 11.21% whereas the gas
consumption has also reduced by 2.80%. The implementation of
energy efficiency and resource conservation adopted by our staff
at all levels makes us the success of our energy saving programs.
Going forward, Hana will continue with energy saving activities as
part of cost saving schemes and our value added to the
environment and society.
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AUZNITNNNg / Committee

wIENTnT NUNIENI, Uszaiu
Mr. Bancha Tarnprakorn, Chairman

wEINAY WAL IEANE, N9INNIg
Mr. Voraphoj Thepvanaprasiddhi, Committee

WBNFAY 1BW 885U, NITNNNT
Mr. Martin Enno Horn, Committee
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Audit Committee Report

The Audit Committee of Hana Microelectronics Public
Company Limited is composed of three independent directors.
Members of the Committee meet the qualification and the scope
of work is in accordance with the rules and regulations of the
Stock Exchange of Thailand.

In performing its oversight responsibilities, the Committee
held 4 meetings during 2008. The meeting attendance of each
committee is as follows.

v 1
Anuaupisdnlsegy / Meeting Attendance

4 A3y AN 4 AT
4of4

4 A%y AN 4 AR
4 of 4

3 A AN 4 AN
3of4

The Committee reviewed and discussed with the
independent and internal auditors of the scope and results of
their examinations including internal control, audit and financial
reporting matters. The Audit Committee also held regular
discussions with the Board of Directors regarding the
preparation of interim and annual financial statements and the
review of management and operational systems for internal
control and legal compliance. The related party transaction has
been reviewed in addition to the requirement that the directors
and management of the Company disclosed on an annual basis
for any related party transactions that may lead to potential
conflict of interest situations.

The external and internal auditors have full and free
access to the Audit Committee. The Committee has
recommended to the Board of Directors the suitable re-
appointment of the independent auditors of Ernst and Young
Bangkok Office Limited for the financial year ending December
31, 2009.

The Audit Committee concludes its satisfaction with the
accuracy, completeness and creditability of 2008 financial
statements’ preparation and reporting, the adequacy of internal
control systems and the compliance with applicable laws and
regulations. There is no transaction that may lead to conflict of
interests. As a result, the Audit Committee has no particular
matter to draw to the attention of shareholders.

MY T2 /\/

Bancha Tarnprakorn
Chairman of Audit Committee
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Nomination Committee Report

ANYNITNNITATIMNTDNLEEMaWY TuTasaiiaTnating anin
(11171) Usenaudaanssunis 3 vinu tnaiingsunnsdasy 2 vinu
ArsznssunslTnsdmiszgn 1 pseludl 2551 Gennsznssumslé
dndantlszguasuynyinu Andznssunigy laantsansandaniuly
n’m‘maﬁmqmm@ﬁﬁqmmﬁﬁmmmﬂum@ﬁﬂmﬁmmumﬁumi

TagAteiiannnug Aruatnisn Uszaunisnd aaenauddadisl

wazviauanauilulselaminausstm
TunsAnaenAenssinsidnAnseRumelell 2551 U5
1@Lﬂm‘i@mmimawumuﬂmﬂmwﬂumm LNITUNIINATUN
fruFuidendadunssunsusimy aruulaunefisanueldlu
website 109U3EN Lmeq”Laﬂmuiuuwmwumﬂmmuﬂmmfam
mummlmmmﬁmmﬁ‘wmsmﬂuﬂwmum Fatfuaniznssunis
Vlmwmatm@'mﬂﬁmmiwumwmmﬂummmmmwmmgm@
TaAU189L3H F9Anznssunnsassmléfiansnnudadnnssunis
mumﬂmqmmmﬂgumm@mmmLyluﬂumwimmﬂﬂ@mqm
AnizNIsuNTsassnTladanisduneunisAndennssunis
fulfaananalissla uazldmihiinungdasluiliiiumn

ﬂ-ﬂf oo

4 =
UNEITNAY INWIULT2ENE
UIe1UATILNITUNITATIVN

30 seoulssU 2008+ usun own IuhsoBAinsTAa SIna (Unisu)

The Nomination Committee consists of three directors, of
which two are the independent directors. In 2008, the company
had one meeting and all committee members attended the
meeting. The Nomination Committee has reviewed the
candidates on the basis of knowledge, skill, experience as well
as vision and attitude to match with the Company’s requirement.

In respect of the candidate nominations for new director
appointments in 2008, the Company promoted the shareholders’
right to propose candidates for election to the board. The
policies and procedures to allow shareholders to propose
candidates for the election of the board are posted on the
Company’s website. However, there were no shareholders
proposed candidates to the Committee for review in previous
year. Therefore, the Nomination Committee reviewed those
directors whose term expired by rotation in accordance with the
Company’s articles of association. The Committee has
considered that those directors potentially continue to make
further contribution to the board and the Company.

The Nomination Committee believes the candidate
nomination for director appointment process is proper and
transparent and in compliance of its charter.

ﬂ“’f smpmoauf

Mr. Voraphoj Thepvanaprasiddhi
Chairman of Nomination Committee
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
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Overall Group Performance

Hana Microelectronics Group ‘Hana’ Sales Revenue
decreased 3% year on year, to THB 15.1 billion in year 2008
from THB 15.6 billion in 2007. Sales Revenue in USD terms
were similar at USD 452m in 2008 and 2007. Operating Profits
decreased 4% to THB 1,847.5m Baht in 2008 from THB
1,927.4m in 2007. Operating profits decreased 1% in USD
terms to USD 55.3m in 2008 from USD 55.8m in 2007. Whilst
2008 sales revenues overall were flat in USD terms compared to
2007, the year 2008 had distinct and contrasting changes in
business trends during the year. USD sales increased year on
year in the first half of 2008 by 9%, were flat year on year in
Q308 and declined sharply in Q408 by 16%. The sales trend
reflected strong continuing growth in emerging markets
supporting the global demand for electronics in 2008 until the
credit crunch delivered a sudden shock to global demand
across the board but particularly impacting the IC and CPG
divisions.

The drop in demand experienced in Q4/08 has continued
and worsened in Q1/09 and we anticipate it to continue into Q2/
09 As a result we anticipate the possibility of an operating loss
for the first half of the 2009. We have undertaken appropriate
measures in headcount reduction (approximately 12%), short
working week, payroll cuts for management and cancellation of
certain bonus schemes. These will be reviewed in light of the on
going economic situation.

Past Performance Analysis

Revenue Analysis

In 2008 IC assembly sales contracted 1% in USD terms
[-4% in THB terms]. Sales grew each quarter through the year
until Q408 which saw a sharp 20% contraction. Over 2008 sales
of the IC division in AYT sales declined 3% and increased 14%
for the IC division in JXG (despite a 25% drop in Q408). The
Microelectronics divisions’ sales revenues grew 1% [-1% THB]
for the 2008 over 2007. The first 3 quarters saw a 7% increase
and a drop of 13% for Q408. The microelectronics operation in
Lamphun grew 1% and JXG by 3% for 2008. CPG sales fell 7%
[-11% THB] in 2008 more than other divisions due to the higher
exposure to the motor vehicle industry. Hana Microdisplay
Technologies “HMT”, sales increased 8% for the year with the
LCOS (Liquid Crystal on Silicon) segment seeing increased
demand from the telecommunications market.
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1l 2551 / 2008

1l 2550 / 2007 1l 2549 / 2006

37% 37% 31%
18% 17% 18%
11% 12% 13%
29% 30% 34%
4% 4% 3%
1% 1% 1%
100% 100% 100%

Gross Profit / Cost of Sales Analysis and Sales and
Administration Analysis

The Gross Profit margin increased slightly by 1% in 2008,
as gross profit in 2007 suffered from inventory valuation
adjustments of THB 100m due to the strengthening the THB/
USD exchange rate from the end of 2006.

SGA expenses were 6% of sales for 2008 and 2007
increasing from 5% in 2006. In absolute terms Sales and
Administration expenses increased by 8% mainly due to THB
60m payment of a paid in retirement/redundancy costs in Q4
2008.

Operating Profit Analysis

The operating margin remained at 12% for 2008 as both
the gross margin and SGA expenses did not change materially
for the year. The operating margin in 2007 fell to 12% from 15%
in 2006 due to the strengthening Baht and higher material costs.
In absolute terms Sales and Administration costs increased by
8% in 2008 and 2007. However due to business growth the
SGA margin remained at approximately 6% of sales revenues
during the 2008 and 2007 up from 5% in 2006.

Similarly, Net Profit margin before exceptional items
remained at 13% in 2008 and 2007 and 15% for 2006.
taxation remained similar at 5-6% of Net Profit before tax for the

Income

three years.

EBITDA margin was quite stable over the three years,
rising slightly by 1% to 19% in 2008 and fell 1% to 18% in 2007
from 19% in 2006.

Payout Analysis

The company paid dividends per share of THB 1.40 (THB
0.50 - Dec 05 and THB 0.90 in May 06) in 2006 from the profits
of 2005 and THB 1.50 (THB 0.50 - Dec 06 and THB 1.00 in May
07) in 2007 from the profits of 2006 and THB 1.30 in 2008 from
the profits of 2007 being 56%, 56% and 51% dividend payout of
net profits before exceptional items respectively.
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The final dividends are normally announced in the board
meeting in March of the following year for approval in the annual
general meeting in April paid out in May. An interim dividend or
THB was paid in each of December 2006 of THB 0.50. An
interim dividend was not paid in 2007 and 2008 due to
insufficient free cashflow from the Thailand based operations
due to the capital expenditure, working capital increase and the
THB 160m additional performance bonus paid to staff in lieu of
share option benefit received in prior years.

Financial Status

The group currently has no interest bearing debt. Cash
(and equivalents) reserves at the 31st December 2008 were
THB 4.7 billion, 2007 THB 3.4 billion and THB 2.1 billion in 2006.

Asset Quality

Accounts Receivable

Most of customers are well known and have good
reputation in the IC, and electronics industry. Provision is made
of amounts outstanding over 90 days and amounts which the
management believe may be doubtful.
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2,457,349,469 2,449,539,930 1,540,272,213

Inventory

In general, Hana’s production is based on clients’ order,
consequently, the majority of inventory are raw materials,
expendable tools and work in process with little finished goods
pending for customer delivery. The group companies normally
write-off out-of-date inventory, and make provision for aged
inventory and depletion in the value of fixed assets, if material,
each quarter.

Inventory days were 59 days in 2008, 61 days in 2007 and
53 days in 2006.
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Liquidity

The group has THB 4.7 billion in cash and no interest
bearing debt liquidity ratios are high at approximately 3 times
current liabilities. Operating Cashflow continued to be strong in
2008 with EBITDA at THB 2.8 billion which was similar to 2007
but THB 0.1 billion lower than 2006.

Cash reserves in 2008 increased by THB 1.3 billion due to
THB 0.5 billion reduction in working capital utilised in 2008 and
the net operating cashflow of THB 0.8 billion. The cash increase
in 2007 was due to the sale of AIT for THB 0.5 billion (USD
15.5m) less capital expenditure higher than depreciation THB
0.4 billion, lower working capital 0.1 billion and a dividend
payout of THB 0.9 billion in 2007.

Capital Expenditure

Net Capital Expenditure was THB 1,730m in 2006, THB
1,278m in 2007 and THB 1,049m in 2008. Generally, capital
expenditure for production equipment will follow the increase in
sales, particularly in the IC division. However, there is a 3 to 6
month time lag due to the ordering lead time. Plant expansion
will depend on the current building utilisation and lead time to

construct new plant or expand in an existing plant.

Source of Financial Capital

As the group as no interest bearing debt and operating
working capital is positive the groups funding is from the
shareholders equity.

Major Factors which could have an Impact on the
Company’s Performance

The company business is that of an electronics
manufacturing service company. As such, it manufactures
products on behalf of its customers for shipment to them or their
customers. Therefore, the company’s performance is mostly
affected by its ability to win and retain business from the existing
and new customers. In turn, customer demand is affected by
world economic growth and the customer’s sales growth.

As all the groups sales revenue are in foreign currency
(primarily USD) and USD currency costs are 66% percent of
sales revenues, the Group operating profit sensitivity to change
in the Thai Baht/USD and Chinese CNY/USD exchange rates is
currently about Baht 135m per quarter for every 10% change in
the average Baht/USD and CNY/USD rates (i.e. (1- 0.66) x Sales
Revenue x 10% ).

The Group’s Thai companies balance sheet exposure is a
net asset of approximately USD 65m, being the foreign currency
working capital balance. Out of the groups foreign exchange
exposure, USD 50m is hedged, Foreign exchange contracts are
used to buy THB and Sell USD on a rolling 3 or 6 months basis.

Whilst the book value of the offshore companies are
represented in foreign currency, the effect of the change in the
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exchange rate is shown by the movement of the foreign
currency ‘Translation Adjustment’ in the shareholders funds
section of the balance sheet. There is no cash affect concerning
its movement.

The THB/USD currency movements reflected the
economic trends in emerging markets and commodities during
period. Whilst the average rate for 2008 THB/USD 33.4 was 3%
stronger than THB/USD 34.6 average rate for 2007 there was
considerable movement in the THB/USD rate over the two years.
2007 began with the THB/USD rate near 35.5 and strengthened
consistently to end 2007 at close to THB/USD 30 a 15%
strengthening in 2007. Conversely, in 2008 the trend completely
reversed to end the year at close to THB 35. For Hana being an
export group of companies the currency movements cause
volatility in earnings due to effects on the operating margins and
also inventory valuations (which the management report each
quarter when there is a material effect on the profits) and
margins.

Exceptional ltems

None in 2008. The company sold 100% of its 23.4%
ownership in AIT in July 2007 to Unisem. The sales and
purchase transaction is completed and the Company’s
subsidiary received approximately USD 14.9 million in Q3 2007.
A further distribution of approximately USD 0.7 million was
received after all expenses of the transaction are finalized.

THB 150m was provided in Q307 as a contingency due to
an income tax claim by the revenue department. This amount
was previously mentioned as a note to the accounts. The
company is in the appeal process.
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1. Risk Factors

a) Business Risk

The largest risk management perceive are significant
changes within our major client base which may be brought
about due to any number of external factors such as a change in
their ownership, or a change in their product program. Whilst
Hana’s key strategy is to maintain a diverse base of customers
with different industry exposures; significant changes from any
one of our major clients can effect the group’s performance.

Market conditions resulting from changes in economic
growth rates of economies will also affect prices and demand for
the company’s services.

b) Production Risk

The production risks are -

- Changes in manufacturing technology making existing
equipment obsolete.

- A factory partial or whole destruction by fire, flood or
earthquake. Whilst The Company has multiple factories there
would be a loss of customers and a period of months to years to
install new equipment and recover customer orders.

- The companies ability to source suitably skilled staff
sufficient direct labour.

c) Management Risk

The company employs a number of expatriate
management in key positions. Whilst the company does not
have any individual staff or management who are key to the
survival of the business, loss of senior management and the
company’s ability to replace key management could affect the
company’s market value and business performance.

d) Financial Risk

Other risk factors which may affect the company are
exchange rates movements of the Thai Baht, political risk and
changes in interest rates and collection of receivables.

Industry and Competitive Condition

In 2008 the markets were strong for the microelectronics
segment throughout until the end of the year which saw some
decline. The IC business was flat at the beginning of the year
but hit record output levels by quarter 3. However, the decline
due to the global economic crisis was very sharp in the last
month of the year. The CPG business saw some decline over the
year.

The company remains competitive by providing
assemblies to the quality level demanded by the customers and
at a competitive cost. The management believes that company
maintains a competitive cost structure equal or lower than the
majority of it's competitors.
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Hana Microelectronics Public Co., Ltd.

13N a1 wdpeudnaes (agaen) Ann
Hana Semiconductor (Ayutthaya) Co., Ltd.

U 87U wHAeUANAST (NFUNN) AR
Hana Semiconductor (BKK) Co., Ltd.

UANMALILNUANNNNTALILT T/ Total

AUSMsdU /Non-audit fee

JodanUIdeD
Risk Factors

Investment policy

The company maintains full management control over
each of it's subsidiaries. Operational management for each
operating subsidiary factory lies with the factory general
manager reporting to the company president. Capital
expenditure and financial management are controlled through
the company’s corporate management, which is overseen by the
board of directors.

4. Future Projects in Plan
None

Fagaauiind/Auditor AdaULiT/Fee

nuaNNe AN TN
Kamontip Lertwitworatep

1,800,000 1N

NUANNE LRFAINETIN
Kamontip Lertwitworatep

720,000 U

NUATINE LAAINEIN
Kamontip Lertwitworatep

480,000 UM

3,000,000 1"

g |
AIABULENUABINIUUTMTAY
Other Non-audit fee

%u?ﬁ'mé’d’m szinnaasnuLdmsau %pjﬂﬂuﬁ'ﬂﬂ dvufianele drufiazsaq
Company Non-audit service Auditor Tuszuaneiliod angluauinm
Fee paid during the Fee paid
fiscal year in the future
15 a1 lulasBidelng m?mwmuLﬁ@f?mqﬂiz@aﬁmww:m? U §11neu 1Budn waust 570,000 UM -
RAA AR (NI1T) mm%@umiﬁﬁﬁﬁmuﬁﬂu’l,wmﬁm £19 A11in
Hana Microelectronics #9831/ Review the compliance with Ernst & Young Office Limited
Public Co., Ltd. the conditions of the Board of
Investment's certificate
L3N 810 i peusnmes mimm@aﬂuLﬁ@f?mqﬂ@tmﬁmwwzmi 13N g113n9u 1@udn wous 320,000 L% =
(8g5811) AR mf;%@umsﬂﬁﬁﬁmuﬁﬂuimmﬁm €19 a11in
Hana Semiconductor #491473/ Review the compliance with Ernst & Young Office Limited
(Ayutthaya) Co., Ltd. the conditions of the Board of
Investment'’s certificate
13N g0 ipauAnined mimm@muLﬁﬁmqﬂi:mﬁmwwﬂw U3 £11neu 1Budn waus 100,000 L% =
(N79WW) A77; mwmumsﬂﬁﬁﬁmmﬁﬂuimm@qﬁMi €19 A11in
Hana Semiconductor #9143/ Review the compliance with Ernst & Young Office Limited
(BKK) Co., Ltd. the conditions of the Board of
Investment'’s certificate
SINANARLUYILAMILIULENNT8 Total Non-audit fee 990,000 LW -
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The board of directors is responsible for the preparation
and integrity of financial statements and to make the timely
disclosure to investors. The financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. Such important information is adequately disclosed
in the notes to financial statement.

The maintenance of the internal control system is the
responsibility of the Board to reasonably assure that assets are
safeguarded from unauthorized use or disposition and that the
accounting records are sufficiently reliable to permit the
preparation of financial statements that conform in all material
respects with generally accepted accounting principles.

The board of directors has appointed an Audit Committee.
The Committee meets during the year to review with
management and the auditors any significant accounting,
internal control, and auditing matters.

The Board is of the opinion that the financial statements of
Hana Microelectronics Public Company Limited and its
subsidiaries for the year ended December 2008 are accurate,
complete, and reliable.

Mr. Richard David Han

e n(
Mr. Bancha Tarnprakorn
Executive Vice Chairman Chairman of the Board

and Chief Executive Officer of Directors
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Report of Independent Auditor

Report of Independent Auditor

To the Shareholders of
Hana Microelectronics Public Company Limited

| have audited the consolidated balance sheet of Hana
Microelectronics Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries as at
31 December 2008, the related consolidated statements of income,
changes in shareholders’ equity and cash flows for the year then
ended, and the separate financial statements of Hana
Microelectronics Public Company Limited for the same period. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the management of the
Company and its subsidiaries as to their correctness and the
completeness of the presentation. My responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. The
consolidated financial statements of Hana Microelectronics Public
Company Limited and its subsidiaries, and the separate financial
statements of Hana Microelectronics Public Company Limited for the
year ended 31 December 2007 were audited in accordance with
generally accepted auditing standards by another auditor of our firm
who, based on her audit and the reports of the other auditors of
overseas subsidiaries, expressed an unqualified opinion on those
statements but drew attention to the change in accounting policy for
recording investments in subsidiary companies in the separate
financial statements from the equity method to the cost method, under
her report dated 28 February 2008.

| did not audit the financial statements of two overseas
subsidiary companies, whose financial statements are included in the
consolidated financial statements. These subsidiary companies had
the total assets as at 31 December 2008 of approximately Baht 251
million, representing 2 percent of the consolidated total and total
revenues for the year then ended of approximately Baht 126 million,
representing 1 percent of the consolidated total. The financial
statements of these subsidiary companies were audited by the
auditors of these subsidiary companies and | had obtained the
reports from their auditors. My opinion, insofar as it related to any
amounts and particulars included for these subsidiary companies,
was based solely upon the reports of the other auditors.

| conducted my audit in accordance with generally accepted
auditing standards. Those standards require that | plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. | believe that my audit provides a reasonable
basis for my opinion.

In my opinion, based on my audit and the reports of the other
auditors, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in
all material respects, the financial position of Hana Microelectronics
Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries and of Hana
Microelectronics Public Company Limited as at 31 December 2008,
the results of their operations, and cash flows for the year then ended,
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

ff Lot

Kamontip Lertwitworatep
Certified Public Accountant (Thailand) No. 4377
Ernst & Young Office Limited
Bangkok: 27 February 2009
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139 a1 lulasdifalnsiing e (WuTw) wazLsmeat / Hana Microelectronics Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries
04 Ui 31 $UanAN 2551 WAL 2550 / As at 31 December 2008 and 2007

(Vg U / Unit: Baht)

IUMSHUTIN JUMSRURNIEIAMS
Consolidated financial statements  Separate financial statements

NNEILUR 2551 2551
Note 2008 2008

AUNSWe / Assets

Aunineuuiden / Current assets

Ruanuazsansifauwinludn / Cash and cash equivalents 6 4,316,298,028  3,386,431,294 610,860,207 291,662,787
ﬁumvﬁm%m’m - 4913 / Short-term investments - net 8 362,624,083 = = =
Qﬂwﬂn’]i‘ﬁ’l / Trade accounts receivable 9

1i5Emelagl / Subsidiary companies 7 - - 23,130,836 23,951,993

L3t - 4% / Other companies - net 1,540,272,213  2,449,539,930 495,876,686 910,415,371
Qﬂﬂﬁm?ﬁﬁ - QV]% / Trade accounts receivable - net 1,540,272,213  2,449,539,930 519,007,522 934,367,364
RunAasaneLnLsEmeias / Advances to subsidiary 7 - - - 3,808,517
AuAnmawae - g / Inventories - net 10 2,060,582,235 2,205,351,493 788,892,584 653,794,617

P I
AUNIWEINYULIEUAY / Other current assets

Runasasane / Advances 22,110,159 41,118,265 10,003,985 19,329,244
n#%esaiunAu / Input tax refundable 41,962,825 58,065,704 5,101,548 6,331,669
nERulAaaAw / Income tax refundable 19,411,601 19,411,601 19,411,601 19,411,601
u °/ Others 53,230,380 43,966,893 9,086,685 10,925,821
sw%uw%’wéuquﬁﬂugu |/ Total other current assets 136,714,965 162,562,463 43,603,819 55,998,335
i’m'ﬁum%lwéuquﬁﬂu / Total current assets 8,416,491,5624  8,203,885,180 1,962,364,132 1,939,631,620

AuninellalnyuiBan / Non-current assets

RuawuluLizsnees / Investments in subsidiary companies 11 - - 3,427,501,838 3,431,505,464
Fumnuiw:ma?ﬁlu / Other long-term investment 97,000 97,000 97,000 97,000
ﬁau mmﬂm:gﬂnmi— QVI% / Property, plant and equipment - net 12 5,875,208,899 5,556,564,034 1,579,009,465 1,530,689,932
Auninelaifisianu - T / Intangible assets - net 13 17,625,230 10,374,633 2,187,761 765,078
auwélwﬂziﬂguﬁﬂuﬁu/ Other non-current assets 2,188,367 2,530,726 1,328,750 1,328,750
sanRunsndlaivyuidau / Total non-current assets 5,895,119,496  5,569,566,393 5,010,124,814  4,964,386,224
F9NRUNTNE / Total assets 14,311,611,020 13,773,451,573  6,972,488,946  6,904,017,844

umﬂmﬁms:nm_m_lm?ﬁutﬂuzﬁqwﬁwmwmiﬁuﬁ/The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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YUNSIvU
Financial Statements

JUAR (A1)
Balance Sheets (Continued)

139 a1 Tulasdifiatnsiing andm (WvnTw) wazUdmees / Hana Microelectronics Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries
0l §uil 31 §ua1AN 2551 WAz 2550 / As at 31 December 2008 and 2007

(Wdagl: U / Unit: Baht)

HUMSHEUTIN HUMSRURWIZIAMS
Consolidated financial statements  Separate financial statements

VNIEINIR 2550 2550
Note 2007 2007
L , e o
UNUAULASHIVARIENBUY / Liabilities and shareholders’ equity

Ko A
uuﬂuuqul?izlu / Current liabilities

1 uidmaean / Trade accounts payable

131meiagl / Subsidiary companies 7 - - 33,211,536 67,755,268
u?‘ﬁ%%‘lu / Other companies 1,087,988,180 1,519,427,697 387,032,570 414,322,992
TQNL’%’WMT‘:H’]T@T’] / Total trade accounts payable 1,087,988,180 1,519,427,697 420,244,106 482,078,260
RuUnnassuanUsEmeat / Advances received from subsidiary companies 7 - - 74 385,213

1szanninsuilduszezdu / Short-term provisions

aznninaNaIAYLAINMIgNLsEuniE/ Provision for loss on tax assessment 255 150,465,664 150,465,664 150,465,664 150,465,664
d@1709n193uL sz UAUAN / Provision for product warranty 151,951,401 124,969,945 - -
Bu °|/ Others 10,779,847 - - -
santlszanamsniiAuszasdu / Total short-term provisions 313,196,912 275435609 150,465,664 150,465,664
Mﬁauuguﬁﬂuﬁlu / Other current liabilities
W wifau / Other payable 140,591,070 291,276,872 17,876,367 57,985,745
AnldanaAn9ae / Accrued expenses 156,440,510 126,459,129 27,985,286 29,572,855
nEFRulANRAYARad19a18 / Corporate income tax payable 70,103,655 69,312,195 40,783,989 43,112,965
RufudsantiaingnAn / Advances received from customers 109,934,299 117,626,441 11,671,943 21,891,235
fu °|/ Others 35,878,399 83,065,274 21,529,604 41,080,878
T'}uﬂﬁauﬁguﬁﬂufﬂ‘u / Total other current liabilities 512,947,933 687,739,911 119,847,189 193,643,678
sqwf‘fawguﬁﬂu / Total current liabilities 1,914,133,025 2,482,603217 690,557,033 826,572,815
s23miAY / Total liabilities 1,914,133,025 2,482,603,217 690,557,033 826,572,815

wmﬂmmﬂ?zn@uqunwsﬁutﬂumuuﬁwmaumiﬁuﬁﬂhe accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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139 a1 lulasdifalnsiing e (WuTw) wazLsmeat / Hana Microelectronics Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries
04 Ui 31 $UanAN 2551 WAL 2550 / As at 31 December 2008 and 2007
(Wdagl: U / Unit: Baht)

AUMIRULRNIZNAMS
Separate financial statements

IUMA4EUTIN
Consolidated financial statements

NHELUB 2551 2551
Note 2008 2008

douaesifiatiu / Shareholders’ equity
v;ul?'a"auﬁu / Share capital
nuasmzien / Registered
usnalzy 1,000,000,000 u yaA1iuaz 1 U / 1,000,000,000
ordinary shares of Baht 1 each 1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000
NuaaNAIMUNLAZEITIANYAAILES / Issued and fully paid-up 14
Yuanslny 830,474,960 1 yaA1iuaz 1 u1n / 830,474,960
ordinary shares of Baht 1 each
(2550: #uansiny 830,405,960 tiu yaruas 1 un) /
(2007: 830,405,960 ordinary shares of Baht 1 each) 830,474,960 830,405,960 830,474,960 830,405,960
dowiuyar1fuansiny / Share premium 1723218982  1,722,077,722  1,723,218,982  1,722,077,722
ua1 AL IAATUAR - dousnndanuainmaiasuntacyasi
ﬁuﬂmu/ Unrealised loss - revaluation deficits on change in value
of investments 8 (24,799,189) - - -
NAFNNAINNITLLAIANUNITRY / Translation adjustment 310,585,278 (26,723,246) - -
fnlsazaa / Retained eamings
IRATTUAD - ﬁﬁi@dmwﬂgﬂmﬂ / Appropriated - statutory reserve 16 322,419,837 322,301,438 100,000,000 100,000,000
Anassudn - dnsastiusnsinyTan / - reserve for treasury shares 17 41,036,725 - 41,036,725 -
falallianass / Unappropriated 9,390,553,682  8,601,512,037  3,628,237,971 3,424,961,347
ANUAULITIANRIUAMUNGINIYA A ANTTYT veeUT e s /
Excess of cost of investments over net book value of the
subsidiary companies (154,975,555) (158,725,555) - -
mm’qumméﬁ@ﬁu / Total shareholders’ equity 12,438,514,720 11,290,848,356 6,322,968,638 6,077,445,029
WuadoyTan / Treasury shares 17 (41,036,725) = (41,036,725) =
sandauaasflieviu - qns / Total shareholders’ equity - net 12,397,477,995 11,290,848,356  6,281,931,913  6,077,445,029
squuﬁauumdqumm:ﬁﬂﬁu / Total liabilities and shareholders’
equity 14,311,611,020 13,773,451,573 6,972,488,946 6,904,017,844

umﬂmﬁms:nm_m_lm?ﬁutﬂuzﬁqwﬁwmwmiﬁuﬁ/The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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YUNSIvU
Financial Statements

sumlsaanu
Income Statements

139 a1 Tulasdifiatnsiing andm (WvnTw) wazUdmees / Hana Microelectronics Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries
o4 Su7 31 $191AN 2551 WAL 2550 / As at 31 December 2008 and 2007
(Vg U / Unit: Baht)

IUMIRUTIN IUMsRULRNIZAAMS
Consolidated financial statements  Separate financial statements
UHIEILR) 2551 2550 2551 2550
Note 2008 2007 2008 2007

s¢/l8 / Revenues
se/lfannnnsene / Sales 15,105,711,728 15,635,567,759 5,648,568,190 5,710,226,133
mlsannisanmitaRuawuluiBimson / Gain on sale of
investment in an associate 18 - 528,666,919 - -
Mﬁ@m%’uﬁu/ Bad debt recovery 18 = 28,921,929 = °
i‘ﬁﬂiﬁ%u / Other income

mﬂmﬁfﬁu / Interest income 76,705,010 49,596,493 7,372,306 1,467,055

A5 / Rental income 5,037,138 4,901,304 18,448,338 18,312,504

Mlsanémsuaniaes / Gain on exchange 75,924,455 179,659,245 - 3,649,311

Ruilunady / Dividend income 18,000 - 440,017,998 562,499,997

TeunduAnldaneanansyantsz i / Reversal of guarantee

expenses 255 25,471,539 - 25,471,539 -

%Iu 7]/ Others 224,119,540 231,569,997 42,024,794 24,327,519
mmwicﬁu / Total other income 407,275,682 465,727,039 533,334,975 610,256,386
gaus1ela / Total revenues 15,512,987,410 16,658,883,646 6,181,903,165 6,320,482,519
Anldans / Expenses
ﬁuwumm / Cost of sales 12,544,342,939 13,076,195,749 4,611,322,354 4,742,846,905
Anldanelunnsane / Selling expenses 178,578,317 178,657,402 29,817,389 22,210,805
Anldanalunsuivung / Administrative expenses 720,447,101 651,619,542 133,938,657 137,840,581
‘u’]mnm’mn’\igﬂﬂiuﬁl&ﬂﬁﬁ/ Loss on tax assessment 25.5 = 150,465,664 - 150,465,664
‘H’]mnumﬂé’ma"nmmﬂa‘ﬁu/ Loss on exchange - - 22,512,938 -
Arldane@u / Other expenses 30,596,461 42,248,894 3,191,757 14,532,889
gauAldans / Total expenses 13,473,964,818 14,099,187,251 4,800,783,095 5,067,896,844
mlstaualdarememsRuuaznBdulatifiyans / Income
before finance cost and corporate income tax 2,039,022,592 2,559,696,395 1,381,120,070 1,252,585,675
Anlganan19N13 81 / Finance cost (6,076,838) (7,794,692) (2,037,061) (4,307,259)
ﬁ’\vl‘iﬁ@uN’lﬁﬁuvlﬁﬁaqﬂﬂﬂ / Income before corporate income
tax 2,032,945,754 2,551,901,703 1,379,083,009 1,248,278,416
nBRulaTiAyaAa / Corporate income tax (123,395,957) (102,740,644) (55,416,632) (55,958,923)
mlsgnadmsuil / Net income for the year 1,909,549,797 2,449,161,059 1,323,666.377 1,192,319,493
msuiisilfumlsgws / Net income attributable to:
dquﬁﬂmméﬁ@ﬁuﬁﬁwlmg / Equity holders of the parent 1,909,549,797 2,449,161,059 1,323,666,377 1,192,319,493
ﬁ’\‘l‘a‘ﬁiﬂﬁ’u / Earnings per share 21

ﬁﬂi‘ﬁiﬂﬁ}:uﬁuﬁuﬁsﬂu/ Basic earnings per share
mlagnadouiidusesdfiefuidimlvn (Um) / Net income
attributable to equity holders of the parent
o D3 o o oA %oy .
AMUIUNUANTNILARLINNUIUUN (W) / Weighted average
number of ordinary shares (shares)
mlsstavfuiuan / Diluted eamings per share
mlsgnadeunidunesdfiefuidilvng (Um) / Net income
attributable to equity holders of the parent

Auauiuatytaedanasinmin (%u) / Weighted average
number of ordinary shares (shares)

2.30 2.95 1.59 1.44
830,133,221 830,008,503 830,133,221 830,008,503
2.30 2.95 1.59 1.43
830,133,221 830,999,660 830,133,221 830,999,660

wmﬂmmqﬂ?:ﬂ@mumiﬁunﬂuﬁquuﬁwmwm-rﬁuﬁ/The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

ANNUAL REPORT 2008 * HANA MICROELECTRONICS PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED 49




‘Sjuswele)s [eloueul ay) Jo ped |eiBajul ue ale sejou BuiAuedwoooe mc._.\mzﬂuhrc:vv@avmsxozsmﬁmhrcﬂv:@cnﬁwémrns

G66'L.V'/6€CL  (SCL'9E0 LY) (595'G26'7S1) 289'€GG'06E'6  G2L'9e0’ LY 1€8'6l1'C2e 8/2'G85'01L€ (681'66.'%72) z86'8le'eTs'L - 096'v.1'0€8 800¢ 19quiadaQ L¢ je se adueleq /GG RYLLIS ¢ W:.\m. U BEKHIbYYER
(Gzr'9e0’ty)  (STL'9e0’ty) - - - - - - - - - LL seleys Anseal] MyeLANILEMY
- - - 000'00L = (000'0014) = = = = - Aieipisgns Jo co:mm_zc__ wouy
anI8S8I AIOJNIE)S JO [esionsy \m@_m;mm:@m?ccremrnsmcnrsv@h%éch
000'05.€ - 000'062'¢ - - = © = - - - sajuedwod AJeIpISONS au) JO SN[eA 004 18U JOAO JUBWISAAUI JO }SOD JO SSBOX
u| 8se8108( NYYBRERLFLINEE wmﬁzrsr,@zmrvc%m:..\rv@:u%gvg@:%
- - (522'9€0°LY) 621980’ LY & 5 5 . a 5 m 9AI9SB 300)S AINSeal) 0} PalIsjSues) \:w@waars:wv@h%_ﬁx@w
- - - (66£'812) - 66£'812 5 - = a 5 9l anlesal AIoJnje)s o) pausajsuel) \mr:smc:rsv@héﬁxﬁ
sBujuies psulejas pajendosddeun /680 LIE] PRUMYRBE] LU
092°012'L - - - o - = - 09Z'LYL'L - 000'69 J1eak sy) Buunp panssi saleys Aleuipio \m?vsﬁ:ﬂm%r\?wcm@_mcurzjw_
(820°'€5€'620°L) - - (820°'€5€'620°}) - - - - - - - ve pled puspIAIQ/ BLEBNMIAN
2€1'650'222'2 - - 161'6V5'606'L - = 25'80€° /€€ (681'66.'%2) - - - Jeak sy} Joj (sasuadxa) awooul [ejo | \_..w_._.ms%mswAmrv\m.._br_&\gmrmzom
16'6v5'606'L - - 161'6v5'606'L - - - - - - - 1834 B} 10} BWOOUL BN / [UIEHLTUBE] LU
GEE'605°CLE = = = = = ¥2G80€"LE€ (681'66.'72) - - - L Aunba uy Aoauip pesjubooa
(sasuadxa) awooul 8N \z‘ﬁmm.qv@s:ﬁ:._.mﬂmﬁmrv@rrtvwfarmzom
125808 265 B B B - - 725'80€° 268 B - a = jJuswySNIPe UONBISUBI ] /MMELUTIMLIYMYINELULLLMLIYN
(681°66.°%2) _ _ _ R _ R (68166.72) . - - ) Ainba,sispioyaieys ul pesiuboosl ss0T MUBUINERHLEMETEUNIYLEN

SONUNOSS B|ES-I0J-0|GE|IBAE Ul SJUBWISBAU] /BLLBNMIBMEUUSHAFUNSHM

Anbs U Agpaup pasiubooa (sesuadxa) awoou] MBUTNEILE M) EMLENRLLELY)ITRLE

958'8v8'062 L1 - (s5'sel'8sL)  /g0'C1S'L09'8 - 8€¥°10€'22 (ove'ees'oe) - celL'Li0'eel't - 096'G07'0€8 200 Jequeds L¢ je se soueleg /0S5Z RULENS LE WML 11 BEMINYYER
95€'8v8'062 L - (Gss'ses'sgl)  Le0'2lg'l09'8 - 8v°10€'22E (ove'ees'e) - celilloTelst - 096'G07'0£8 100z 19quis0aq L Je Se soueleq /0SS RULLNMS LE UNE 18 BEUIDYUER
- - - (8e¥'102'2) - 8€7'102'C - - - - - 9L aniase) Alownjess o} pauisjsues /RLRKFURLUNBELBTIAE]

sBujuies pauiejal pajeudoiddeun [EEVULIE] PBURBAE| LU

(01£'622'S) - - - - - - o = (01€'62.'S) B uonelsibal aiojeq

90UBAPE Ul PaAIadal uonduosgns m_mcm\ﬁmmJnS@@hrc:@_crm_\;o«:\mﬁ\_wrt
Y90 b L : i B - . - - ¥66'950'9€ - 0/9'/81'S 1eaA 8y} BulNp senss| seJeys AIBUIPIO /[INLLKAEH| BLIKLEUBE LA
(069'v21"L28) - - (069'v2L'L28) - - - - - - - ¥ pled puspiAId / BLEBNA[IT
G/6'618'012'2 - - 650'L9L'6V7'2 - - (¥80°LYe'8e2) - - - - 1eak BU) 10} (saSUBAXE) BWOOUI [EIOL /[LMLENLEBUB(BLLE|LY)W]BLENES
650'l9L'6hY'e - - 650'L9L'6VY'C - - - - - - - 1eak ay) Joj swooul JaN / _m_._\,mwrr%m_\,wﬁrt
(h80'Lpe'eEs) - B _ R - (180'LvE'88T) - . - o Ainba ul Aoaup pesiuBooal sesuadxe JoN Ew.@m.mv@azozaﬂmﬁwarvwﬁrwzg
(r80°1vE'8€2) - - - - - (r80°1vE'8€2) - - - - Jusunsnfpe uone|suel | MELUMBLYBEINELUULLDLISH

:Ajnba u Apoauip pasiubooss sasuadxg \Swr@mmv@_r:omsfmﬂmwmrvﬁrt

11€'8€9'1/8'6 - (595'G22'851) 901°2/9'186'9 - 000'00}‘02e 8€8'/19'Lle - 82€'120'989'L 0L€'62L'S 062'812'G28 9002 Joquisda( Lg e se souejeq /67G¢ MULLIS LE Ui U BEKIPYYER
seluedwod S10N
Aleipisgns lswinLrn
Ul 40 anjea saleys Ainseasy
3000 }8U JOA0
SJUBULISOAU JO 150D 104 19SS lejdeo aseys
40 $S90X3 BER :wmmmmwrszwﬁ juswisnipe dn pred
SE_AEFFE_A g uonejsuel | pue panss|
zrsrc@zrcc%s MMELUMD wniwald aleys LENZELLRYN
psjeudoiddy e¥iIEENYY S P v I3
lejo] nibenMLYLe & = LUBYLTELUULY faLuniLyer mr:s,r@
ee DELAUITLLY sBuiuies pauteloy ryaBe|LY pLIYBM UMY cmas:v.

SjusWalLRIS [BIOUBUIL PBIEPIIOSUO) / NCSNAISLUNG

/00¢ PuE 800¢ Joquiada( Lg papus sieak 8y} 104 / 0GGC 281 LGGZ RULLHG LE $30@§Am [ArenLy
SaleIpISgNs S pue pajwi] Auedwo) o1 gnd SOIU0J108[80.DIN BUBH / RBERUFLEMTIVT (MBLIAN) YuLy &€3h$H€§@h€HZH Sﬁ.\m WRLEM

(lyeg Hun / WL BLfM)

Aunbs sispjoyaieys ul ssbueys Jo sjuswalels
NUEBLNMBRMLEMSINMIBYLISLUMINIILY

o lulnsdidainsting ona (umisu)

usun

U 2008 =

)

SIENUUS:

mm 00



“sjuaLIBle)s [elouBul 8y} Jo Med [eiBelul Ue e sejou BulAueduIoooe By L/MMMELUMINBIMIMALPHIHMELUMMIBUREIMIRLIEA

€16'1€6'182'9

o1

ANNUAL REPORT 2008 * HANA MICROELECTRONICS PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

(S2L'980°LY) 116'/€2'829'E  STL'90'LY cge'8leees't - 096'v.7'0£8 8007 10qUI908Q L€ Je Se oUBleq / LSSZ NULLMS LE UL 18 BEUINYUER

(GzL'980ty)  (G2L980ly) - - - - : 2 seieys Ainseai / ngegbrLunis
- - (§22'9€0"LY) SZL'9E0' LY - - - A saleys Ainseau) oy
anIesel 0} pauissuel) sbujules paulejal pajendoiddeun \:w@wmﬁrs:wv@?x#mi@ﬁ&@wﬁﬁ _u, Yape| LU

092'012'L - a o 092 Ly L - 000'69 Jeak eyy Buunp penss| seseys Aleuipio / mvrvsﬁzea%s&cm@amrszw
(820'€5€'620')) - (820'€5€'620'L) - - - - ve pied puspIAg / RLSBHAIHN
11€'999'€2E' L - Lig'9g9'eze’L - - - - 1eak 2y} Joj awooul felo]. / [IeaLpSUBY|RLeItLS
1/€'999°€TE L - 11€'999'€ee’L - - - - 420/ QU] 10} BUIDOUL AN/ [HLEHLBEUbE] LY
620'Shi'220'9 - Ve 196'vZh'E o 22.'110'22.) - 096'S0t'0€8 002 49qwia0e( L€ 1€ SE S0UBjed / 0SGZ RULLMS LE UME T BEUIbUUER
620'GYy'LL0'9 - LvE'196'ver'e - cel'i0ees - 096'S0¥'0€8 00z 1oqui20aQ L€ Je se ooueleq / 0557 RULLMS LE UL 1I BEUINYUER
(01£'622°G) - _ _ - (01£'62.'G) = uonessiBal 810590 8oUBAPE Ul paAladal uondiiosgns aleys / 3_.»@4»s«ehrc:@tr?;vcz:m:wrt
90"V LY - o o ¥6£°950'98 - 0/9'281'S Jeak eyy Buunp penss| seseys AleuIpIO / m?vsﬁzem&sécm@au%:w
(069721 L28) - (069721 228) - - - - ve pied pUSPIA] / BLSBHAIIN
€6Y'6IETBLL - €6Y'61E26L'L - - - - 1eak o) Joj awooul felo]. / [IeaLpSUBY|RLeItLE
€6V'6LETOLL - €6Y'6LETOLL - - - - 420/ 8U} 10} BUIDOUL JON / [HTLEMLEUbE] LY
TLY'SEL'9/9'G - vvG'99,'650°€ - 000°000°00} 82€'120'989'L  0LE'62LS 062'812'528 900 19qWs09( L Je Se S0UBled / 6YGZ RWLLMS LE UWNE 1I BEWINYUER

810N
briRLR®

SjuswWialels [elouBUl SleJedss / SLUGULMRINQISLUNG

(JUeg HuN / WLTT :BUK)

/002 PUB 800z Jaquiaoe( | Papue sieak ay) 104 / 0SGZ 261 1552 RWULENS LE $3ogm§m MeuLy
SOLEIPISANS S} PUB pejwI] AuedwoD ol|GNd SOIUCHOBIS0IOIN BUBH / BBRILFLEMZUM (MELKMN) YULL ggxhﬁcg@hcwnﬁ LALE WM

(panunuos) Aunba siapjoyaleys ul sabueyo Jo sjuswales
NUEBLNMBRILEMSINMBYLISLUMINIILY



VUNISIDU
Financial Statements

AUNTEURLIURA
Statements of cash flows

139 a1 lulasdifalnsiing e (WnNTw) wazLsmeat / Hana Microelectronics Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries

ﬁﬁﬁ?ﬂﬂﬁu?ﬁm'ﬁiﬁ 31 f10NAN 2551 WAy 2550 / For the year ended 31 December 2008 and 2007 ) )
(MU98: U / Unit: Baht)

IUMSEUTIN AWUMIRULRNIZNAMS
Consolidated financial statements  Separate financial statements

2551 2551
2008 2008
nezudRUAAANNNAnssNALEUIY / Cash flows from operating activities

ﬁﬁiﬁ‘@w%ﬁﬂuﬂ’]ﬁ/ Net income before tax 2,032,945,754 2,551,901,703 1,379,083,009 1,248,278,416

sensfunsznusennilsgnineunifiiuRuansu(@re) aanfianssuanfiney /
Adjustments to reconcile net income before tax to net cash provided by (paid from)
operating activities:

ﬁ’]lfﬁ"rﬂmﬂm / Depreciation 961,806,047 847,581,697 231,461,199 198,990,353
ANGInALNE / Amortisation expenses 2,362,431 1,898,549 236,577 128,087
uﬁmﬁm:zgm(‘tﬂuﬂﬁu) / Doubtful accounts (reversal) 5,444,051 5,341,822 - (1,860,518)
‘mmnu(ﬁﬂi)mnauﬁﬁL?iau@mmwLL@:Lm?iﬂu”lm“’ﬁﬁ / Loss (gain) from obsolete and slow
moving inventories 87,166,166  (46,928,494) 99,023,226 (8,795,246)
au(inle)annisamiiaginsal / Loss (gain) on disposals of equipment (320,555) 2,885,983 (73,357) (915,115)
mmv;umnmiﬁamwmauw%’wﬂr/ Loss from impairment of assets 772,798 1,784,178 772,798 1,784,178
#1789n135uU sz UAUAN / Provision for product warranty 26,840,913 27,716,005 - =
ﬂ"fl%"«iﬂﬂ@’mn’]i‘zé’]ﬂ?zﬁud@uﬂﬁ‘u) / Guarantee expenses (reversal) (25,471,539) 14,532,889  (25,471,539) 14,532,889
mmnumnﬁumnﬂuﬁﬁwﬂ@ﬂﬁﬁﬂﬁ@mi/ Loss on cease of operation of subsidiary 3,755,548 - 3,191,757 -
Nmmnuﬂ’mmﬁ‘gﬂﬂiuﬁumﬁ / Loss on tax assessment - 150,465,664 - 150,465,664
fTﬂi"i’]ﬂﬂ’]iLﬂalf_luLLﬂ@\m“@ﬂ"\ﬁuﬂ\ﬂ{!u/ Revaluation gain on investment 5,156,400 - - -
Alsansmauanulasuielaiifiniusie / Unrealised gain on exchange (29,865,817)  (8,311,813) (847,494)  (4,138,419)
‘mmnumnﬁmmwwL'EummﬁmﬂimﬂmmﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂLﬁm%u'ﬁq / Unrealised loss on
forward contracts 17,014,103 = 4,704,000 =
sel i Rutlupay / Dividend income from subsidiary companies - - (439,999,998) (562,499,997)
ﬁ'ﬂsﬁ"ﬁhﬂmmﬁﬁ / Interest expenses 3,003 2,213,747 165,903 2,342,629
Alsannnnsanifiusuneunisulasuudadluduninduazuifus 1w / Income from
operating activities before changes in operating assets and liabilities 3,087,609,303 3,551,081,930 1,252,246,081 1,038,312,921
ﬁum“wﬁmnmiﬁwLﬁumu(ﬁm%u)mm / Operating assets (increase) decrease
Qﬂwﬂn’]iﬁ’] / Trade accounts receivable 897,624,331 9,326,281 417,437,412  (82,271,228)
AuAAAUURS / Inventories 57,603,092 269,915,199 (234,121,193) 129,532,383
AuninduauiAeuiu / Other current assets 33,612,548 10,513,060 14,010,510  (11,918,050)
Funiwelaivauiianau / Other non-current assets 342,359 20,649,804 - 6,527,846
wﬁaumnm@ﬁﬁLﬁummﬁuﬁu(mm) / Operating liabilities increase (decrease)
L’%”mﬁﬂ’]iﬁ’l / Trade accounts payable (439,333,481) (213,008,534)  (62,994,807) (301,602,818)
AnldaneiAneans / Accrued expenses 29,431,773 6,134,879  (2,137,177) 4,844,950
RuiuasentiiaingnAn / Advances received from customers 7,200,471 10,635,447  (10,930,197)  (1,034,162)
uﬁauﬂguﬁﬂugu / Other current liabilities (6,121,696) (214,620,779) 230,301 (15,197,896)
RUgAINNNANTINATIEWINY / Cash from operating activities 3,667,968,700 3,450,627,287 1,373,740,930 767,193,946
@'wm@mﬁﬂ / Cash paid for interest expenses (3,003) (2,212,384) (3,003) (2,212,384)
e #FR{uls / Cash paid for corporate income tax (122,206,337) (123,137,490) (57,347,448)  (33,578,598)
RuangnBANNanssuALTuaIU / Net cash from operating activities 3,545,759,360 3,325277,413 1,316,390,479 731,402,964

umamuznjT:namun'ﬁﬁutﬂuzﬁqwﬁwmqmWiﬁuﬂ/The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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AUNTZURIIUER (AD)
Statements of cash flows (continued)

YUNSIvU
Financial Statements

139 a1 Tulasdifiatnsiing andm (WvnTw) wazdmees / Hana Microelectronics Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries
AwFutlaugniui 31 Suanau 2551 waz 2550 / For the years ended 31 December 2008 and 2007

ns::uﬂﬁuﬂmmn?mnﬁuamu / Cash flows from investing activities
Eumnwfmmmﬁ'ﬁyu/ Increase in short-term investments
RunpsaganaLnldEmeiasanas / Decrease in advances to subsidiaries
RutlunaiuanusEveias / Dividend income from subsidiary companies

FuAuRuamuanL3imeasidnianig / Return on investment from a liquidated
subsidiary

Fofiau 21A17uAraLUNInl / Acquisition of property, plant and equipment
Ruaniuainnisarmiieginani/ Proceeds from disposals of equipment
L’Euﬂmqw%mnﬂﬂﬁ'lﬂ'lu)ﬁqnssumv!u / Net cash from (used in) investing activities
NFLUARUAAANNNANTTNAAUIISU / Cash flows from financing activities

RunazassuanLUTEvtiasinau(@nad) / Increase (decrease) in short-term loans and
advances from subsidiary companies

Summ%umnnmﬂunu / Cash received from share capital increase

RuArfusuatsmdinaunisaanziiauanas / Decrease in share subscription received
in advance before registration

Ruananadmuuyuian / Cash paid for purchase of treasury shares
Nutlunasane / Dividend paid
ﬁuaﬂqw?i'lﬂﬂuﬁqmsué'mmﬁu / Net cash used in financing activities

RUAALATIENANEUYINRuanLAN(ana3) / Increase (decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents

NAFNNAINNITLLAIANLNITRY / Translation adjustment

RUAALASIEMIAL LIRS UAALNNTW(RAR)ENE / Net increase (decrease)
in cash and cash equivalents

RuspuazsanaifeuyinRudn o Susutl /
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

RuanuazsIamMsiiguvinkuan s Judlateil (Munawe 6) / Cash and cash
equivalents at end of the year (Note 6)

‘fl’ﬂgani:l,mﬁuﬂm?]mumﬁmau / Supplemental cash flow information

Al e A a s o XA X -
mﬂrpivﬂ,mlmNuam@’mmﬂﬁummmuﬂ?zn@umﬂmuumﬂéﬁﬂmmnmz@ﬂmm
Lﬁsﬁu(mm) / Non-cash related transaction from investing activities Net increase
(decrease) in accounts payable for purchase of plant and equipment

MenuaINNaLaEuLLaaA1Iuau / Revaluation loss on investments

JUMSHUTIN

Consolidated financial statements

(Mdag:

U / Unit: Baht)

JUMSRULRNIZRAMS

Separate financial statements

2551 2551
2008 2008
(392,579,672) - - -
= = 3,808,517 2,775,288
= = 439,999,998 562,499,997
= - 811,869 =
(1,448,372,862) (1,271,094,848)  (323,660,026)  (530,369,533)
7,170,877 231,734,603 1,411,215 3,619,996
(1,833,781,657) (1,039,360,245) 122,371,673 38,525,748
= = (385,139) 385,139
1,210,260 41,244,064 1,210,260 41,244,064
= (5,729,310) = (5,729,310)

(41,036,725)

(1,079,353,028)

(827,124,690)

(41,036,725)

(1,079,353,028)

(827,124,690)

(1,119,179,493)

(791,609,936)

(1,119,564,632)

(791,224,797)

wmﬂm@ﬂﬁzn@uaunW?ﬁuLﬂudquuﬁqmmqum-rﬁuﬁ/The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

592,798,210  1,494,307,232 319,197,420 (21,296,085)
337,068,524  (225,636,084) = =
929,866,734  1,268,671,148 319,197,420 (21,296,085)
3,386,431,294  2,117,760,146 291,662,787 312,958,872
4,316,298,028  3,386,431,294 610,860,207 291,662,787
(150,685,802) 119,361,060 (40,109,378) (32,738,230)
(24,799,189) = = =
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Note to Financial Statements
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1315 g TulasdidaTnsiing andm (vnTw) wazidmees
Amsullaugadun 31 funnau 2551 uay 2550

1. doyarolu
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Notes to consolidated financial statements

Hana Microelectronics Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries
For the years ended 31 December 2008 and 2007

1. General information

1.1 Corporate information
Hana Microelectronics Public Company Limited (“the Company”) was incorporated as a limited company under Thai law and
transformed to be a public limited company under the Public Limited Companies Act on 27 January 1993. The Company is principally
engaged in the manufacturer of electronic components and its registered address is at 10/4 Moo 3, Vibhavadi - Rangsit Road, Kwang
Talad Bangkhen, Khet Laksi, Bangkok.

1.2 Economic crisis
The financial crisis experienced by the United States of America over the past year has had a far reaching adverse effect on the global
economy as evidenced by sharp falls in share prices worldwide, a tight squeeze on credit including interbank lending, failures of large
financial institutions and reduced consumer confidence. The crisis has substantially affected the business and financial plans of
Thailand enterprises and asset value. Despite efforts made by governments of many countries to contain the crisis, it remains uncertain
as to when the global economy will return to normalcy. These financial statements have been prepared on the bases of facts currently
known to the Company, and on estimates and assumptions currently considered appropriate. However, they could be adversely

_— 2

affected by an array of future events.

2. Basis of preparation

2.1 The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting standards enunciated under the Accounting Profession

Act B.E. 2547 and their presentation has been made in compliance with the stipulations of the Notification of the Department of

Business Development dated 14 September 2001, issued under the Accounting Act B.E. 2543.

The financial statements in Thai language are the official statutory financial statements of the Company. The financial statements in English
language have been translated from such financial statements in Thai language.
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except where otherwise disclosed in the accounting policies.

2.2 Basis of consolidation

a) The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of Hana Microelectronics Public Company Limited (“the
Company”) and the following subsidiary companies (“the subsidiaries”):

Assets as a Revenues as a
percentage percentage to
Percentage of to the consolidated  the consolidated total
. . . shareholding total as at for the year ended
Company’s name Nature of business Country of incorporation 31 December 31 December 31 December
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
Percent Percent Percent Percent Percent Percent
Held by the Company
Hana Trading Company Limited Deregisterred Thailand - 100 - - - -
Manufacturing of electronic
Hana Semiconductor (BKK) Company Limited components Thailand 100 100 4 4 11 12
Trading of electronic
Omac Sales Limited components Hong Kong 100 100 4 2 - -
Hana Microelectronics International Company Limited Holding company British Virgin Islands 100 100 5 4 - 1
Holding company and trading
Hana Microelectronics Investments Company Limited of electronic components British Virgin Islands 100 100 - 1 1 -
Hana Technologies Group Limited Holding company Cayman Islands 100 100 - - - -
Hana Semiconductor Investments Limited Deregisterred British Virgin Islands = 100 ° ° ° o
Manufacturing of electronic
Hana Semiconductor (Ayuthaya) Company Limited components Thailand 58 58 16 17 17 17
Held through the subsidiary companies
Trading of electronics
Hana Semiconductor International Limited components British Virgin Islands 100 100 4 6 21 20
Hana Semiconductor Holding Limited Holding company British Virgin Islands 100 100 - - - -
Hana Technologies Investments Limited Holding company Cayman Islands 100 100 - - - -
Hana Semiconductor Enterprises Company Limited Deregisterred British Virgin Island - 100 - - - -
Hana Microelectronics Company Limited (Shanghai) Dormant China 100 100 3 3 - -
Manufacturing of electronic
Hana Microdisplay Technologies, Inc. components USA 100 100 2 2 1 1
Hana Microelectronics, Inc. Agent and customer services USA 100 100 - - - -
Hana Microelectronics Enterprises Company Limited Holding company British Virgin Island 100 100 - - - -
Hana Macao Commercial Offshore Limited Customer services Macao 100 100 = = = =
Manufacturing of electronic
Hana Microelectronics (Jiaxing) Company Limited components China 100 100 26 24 1 1
Manufacturing of electronic
Hana Semiconductor (Ayuthaya) Company Limited components Thailand 42 42 11 12 12 13
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b) Subsidiaries are fully consolidated as from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the Company obtains control, and
continue to be consolidated until the date when such control ceases.

c) The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the parent company, using consistent
significant accounting policies.

d) The financial statements of overseas subsidiary companies are translated into Thai Baht at the average exchange rate on the
balance sheet date as to assets and liabilities, and at monthly average exchange rates as to revenues and expenses. The resultant
differences are shown under the caption of “Translation adjustment” in shareholders’ equity.

e) Material balances and transactions between the Company and its subsidiary companies have been eliminated from the consolidated
financial statements.

f) The excess of cost of investments in subsidiary companies over the net book value of the subsidiary companies at acquisition date
has been charged as a deduction directly against the shareholders’ equity in the consolidated financial statements (The transaction
occurred prior to 2000).

2.3 The separate financial statements, which present investments in subsidiaries under the cost method, have been prepared solely for
the benefit of the public.

3. Adoption of new accounting standards

3.1 Accounting standards which are effective for the current year

The Federation of Accounting Professions has issued Notification No. 9/2550, 38/2550 and 62/2550 mandating the use of the following new
accounting standards.

TAS 25 (revised 2007) Cash Flow Statements

TAS 29 (revised 2007) Leases

TAS 31 (revised 2007) Inventories

TAS 33 (revised 2007) Borrowing Costs

TAS 35 (revised 2007) Presentation of Financial Statements

TAS 39 (revised 2007) Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors
TAS 41 (revised 2007) Interim Financial Reporting

TAS 43 (revised 2007) Business Combinations

TAS 49 (revised 2007) Construction Contracts

TAS 51 Intangible Assets

These accounting standards became effective for the financial statements for fiscal years beginning on or after 1 January 2008. The
management has assessed the effect of these standards and believes that TAS 33 (revised 2007) and TAS 49 (revised 2007) are not relevant to
the business of the Company, while the other standards described above do not have any significant impact on the financial statements for the
current year.

3.2 Accounting standards which are not effective for the current year

The Federation of Accounting Professions has also issued Notification No. 86/2551 mandating the use of the following new accounting

standards.
TAS 36 (revised 2007) Impairment of Assets
TAS 54 (revised 2007) Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations

These accounting standards will become effective for the financial statements for fiscal years beginning on or after 1 January 2009. The
management has assessed the effect of these standards and believes that they will not have any significant impact on the financial statements for
the year in which they are initially applied.

4. Significant accounting policies

4.1 Revenue recognition

Sales of goods

Sales of goods are recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer. Sales are the
invoiced value, excluding value added tax, of goods supplied after deducting discounts and allowances.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis based on the effective interest rate.

Rental income

Rental income is recognised on an accrual basis.

Dividends

Dividends are recognised when the right to receive the dividends is established.
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4.2 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand, cash at banks, and all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months
or less and not subject to withdrawal restrictions.

4.3 Trade accounts receivable

Trade accounts receivable are stated at the net realisable value. Allowance for doubtful accounts is provided for the estimated losses that
may be incurred in collection of receivables. The allowance is generally based on collection experiences and analysis of debt aging.

4.4 Inventories

Raw materials, work in process and finished goods are valued at the lower of standard cost (which approximates actual cost) and net
realisable value. Cost of work in process and finished goods includes direct materials, direct labour and factory overheads.

Allowance for diminution in inventory value is set up for obsolete, slow-moving or deteriorated inventories.

4.5 Investments

a) Investments in securities held for trading of a subsidiary are stated at fair value. Gains or losses arising from changes in the carrying
amounts of securities are included in determining income.

b) Investments in available-for-sale securities of a subsidiary are stated at fair value. Changes in the carrying amounts of securities are
recorded as separate items in shareholders’ equity until the securities are sold, when the changes are then included in determining
income.

c) Investment in associate is accounted for in the consolidated financial statements using the equity method.

d) Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for in the separate financial statements using the cost method.

The fair value of marketable securities is based on the latest bid price of the last working day of the year as quoted on the Stock Exchange
of Thailand and the Stock Exchange in overseas.

4.6 Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property is stated at cost. Plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and allowance for loss on impairment of
assets (if any).

Depreciation of plant and equipment is calculated by reference to their costs on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives as

follows:
Leasehold improvements - period of lease
Building - 20 years
Installation - 10 years
Other assets - 5-15years

Depreciation is included in determining income.

No depreciation is provided on land, construction in progress and machinery under installation.

4.7 Intangible assets

Intangible assets are measured at cost on the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses (if any).

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised on a systematic basis over the economic useful life and tested for impairment whenever there
is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method of such intangible assets are
reviewed at least at each financial year end. The amortisation expense is charged to the income statement.

A summary of the intangible assets with finite useful lives is as follows:

Useful lives

Computer software 5-10 years

4.8 Related party transactions

Related parties comprise enterprises and individuals that control, or are controlled by, the Company, whether directly or indirectly, or which
are under common control with the Company.

They also include associated companies and individuals which directly or indirectly own a voting interest in the Company that gives them
significant influence over the Company, key management personnel, directors and officers with authority in the planning and direction of the
Company’s operations.

4.9 Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Baht at the exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Baht at the exchange rate ruling at the balance sheet date.

Gains and losses on exchange are included in determining income.

4.10 Impairment of assets
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At each reporting date, the Company and its subsidiaries perform impairment reviews in respect of the properly, plant and equipment and
other intangible assets whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that an asset may be impaired. An impairment loss is recognised
when the recoverable amount of an asset, which is the higher of the asset'’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use, is less than the carrying
amount. In determining value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs to sell, an
appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by a valuation model that, based on information available, reflects the
amount that the Company and its subsidiaries could obtain from the disposal of the asset in an arm’s length transaction between knowledgeable,
willing parties, after deducting the costs of disposal.

An impairment loss is recognised in the income statement.

4.11 Employee benefits

Salaries, wages, bonuses and contributions to the social security fund and provident fund are recognised as expenses when incurred.

4.12 Treasury share

Treasury share is stated at cost and is presented as a reduction from shareholders’ equity. Gains on disposal of treasury share is
determined by reference to its carrying amount and are taken to premium on treasury stock, losses on disposal of treasury stock are determined
by reference to its carrying amount and are taken to premium on treasury stock and retained earnings, consecutively.

4.13 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company and the subsidiaries have a present obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation.

In addition, its subsidiaries also record provision for product warranty, which is estimated by reference to obligation for product warranty
under manufacturing contract.

4.14 Income tax

Income tax is provided in the accounts based on taxable profits determined in accordance with tax legislation.

4.15 Derivatives - forward exchange contracts

Receivables and payables arising from forward exchange contracts are translated into Baht at the rates of exchange ruling at the balance

sheet date. Gains and losses from the translation are included in determining income.

5. Significant accounting judgments and estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles at times requires management to make
subjective judgments and estimates regarding matters that are inherently uncertain. These judgments and estimates affect reported amounts and
disclosures and actual results could differ. Significant judgments and estimates are as follows:

Allowance for doubtful accounts

In determining an allowance for doubtful accounts, the management needs to make judgment and estimates based upon, among other
things, past collection history, aging profile of outstanding debts and the prevailing economic condition.

Allowance for diminution in inventory value

In determining an allowance for diminution in inventory value, the management needs to make judgment in estimating loss from
obsolescence and slow moving, and the reduction of net realisable value of inventories.

Fair value of financial instruments

In determining the fair value of financial instruments that are not actively traded and for which quoted market prices are not readily available,
the management exercise judgment, using a variety of valuation techniques and models. The input to these models is taken from observable
markets, and includes consideration of liquidity, correlation and longer-term volatility of financial instruments.

Impairment of equity investments

The Company treats available-for-sale equity investments and other investments as impaired when the management judges that there has
been a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value below their cost or where other objective evidence of impairment exists. The determination
of what is “significant” or “prolonged” requires judgment.

Property plant and equipment and depreciation

In determining depreciation of plant and equipment, the management is required to make estimates of the useful lives and salvage values of
the Company’s plant and equipment and to review estimate useful lives and salvage values when there are any changes.

In addition, the management is required to review property, plant and equipment for impairment on a periodical basis and record
impairment losses in the period when it is determined that their recoverable amount is lower than the carrying cost. This requires judgments
regarding forecast of future revenues and expenses relating to the assets subject to the review.
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6. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December 2008 and 2007 as reflected in the balance sheets and cash flow statements consist of the

following:

Cash in hand and at banks
Investment in money market funds
Fixed deposits with maturity not over 3 months

Cash and cash equivalents

Consolidated financial statements

(Unit: Baht)

Separate financial statements

20 [ eor 0 08 [ a0r
3,254,203,134 3,149,596,639 200,860,207 191,662,787
710,000,000 65,846,235 360,000,000 -
352,094,894 170,988,420 50,000,000 100,000,000
4,316,298,028 3,386,431,294 610,860,207 291,662,787

7. Related party transactions
During the years, the Company and its subsidiaries had significant business transactions with related parties. Such transactions, which are
summarised below, arose in the ordinary course of business and were concluded on commercial terms and bases agreed upon between the

Company and those related parties.

Consolidated financial statements

Transactions with subsidiary companies

(eliminated from the consolidated
financial statements)

Sales of goods

Sales of fixed assets

Rental income

Interest income

Purchase of materials

Purchase of fixed assets

Service fee expenses

2008 [ 2007
4,886 5,389
304 235
13 13
1 3
2,138 2,639
317 237
57 83

Separate financial statements

2008
129 28
IS 13
296 313
12 2
7 19

(Unit: Million Baht)

Transfer Pricing Policy

Prices agreed between the parties
due to the uniqueness of products
sold to each customer.

Market price

Contract price

Interest at fixed deposit rate
Cost plus mark up

Market price

Rates stipulated in the agreement

As at 31 December 2008 and 2007, the balances of the accounts between the Company and those related parties are as follows:

Trade accounts receivable - subsidiary companies

Hana Microelectronics Investments Company Limited

Hana Microdisplay Technologies, Inc.

Omac Sales Limited

Hana Semiconductor (BKK) Company Limited

Hana Microelectronics International Company Limited

Hana Semiconductor (Ayuthaya) Company Limited

(Unit: Baht)

Separate financial statements

Total trade accounts receivable - subsidiary companies

s (0O

S1IEMUUS:OU 2008

>

2008 S
16,189,377 6,334,767
4,009,837 776,433
1,695,073 15,707,064
1,201,241 1,133,729
34,750 =
558 =
23,130,836 2891571 298}
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(Unit: Baht)

Separate financial statements

2008 e

Advances to subsidiary company

Hana Semiconductor (Ayutthaya) Company Limited - 3,808,517
Total advances to subsidiary company - 3,808,517
Trade accounts payable - subsidiary companies Omac Sales Limited 23,892,724 49,305,520
Hana Microdisplay Technologies, Inc. 3,204,825 1,094,125
Hana Semiconductor International Limited 3,064,309 1,333,154
Hana Microelectronics, Inc. 2,013,609 3,330,609
Hana Semiconductor (Ayutthaya) Company Limited 1,031,789 12,691,860
Hana Semiconductor (BKK) Company Limited 4,280 -
Total trade accounts payable - subsidiary companies 33,211,536 67,755,268
Advances from subsidiary companies

Hana Semiconductor (BKK) Company Limited - 385,139
Hana Technologies Group Limited 74 74
Total advances from subsidiary companies 74 385,213

Directors’ and management’s remuneration
In 2008, the Company and its subsidiaries paid salaries, bonus, meeting allowances and gratuities to their directors and management
totaling Baht 84 million (the Company only: Baht 12 million) (2007: Baht 85 million, the Company only: Baht 14 million).

8. Short-term Investments
(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial statements
31 December 2008

Cost/ Carying value o ranvewe

Securities held for trading

Overseas marketable equity securities 34,956,375 28,351,334
Domestic marketable equity securities 11,083,002 12,084,279
Credit linked note 34,956,375 34,956,375
Less: Revaluation deficit on investments (5,603,764) -
Securities held for trading - net 75,391,988 75,391,988
Available-for-sale securities

Overseas marketable corporate bonds 247,478,253 219,398,898
Quoted bond 64,553,031 67,833,197
Less: Revaluation deficit on investments (24,799,189) -
Available-for-sale securities - net 287,232,095 287,232,095
Total short-term investments - net 362,624,083 362,624,083

During the current year, Hana Microelectronics International Company Limited, an overseas subsidiary company, had invested in mutual
fund of a company listed on Cayman Island Stock Exchange, warrants of a company listed on Thailand Stock Exchange including the Credit linked
note through an overseas bank. These investments are held for trading purpose. As at 31 December 2008, this subsidiary had assessed the fair
value of the equity securities by referring to the latest bid price as quoted on the Stock Exchange for mutual fund and warrants and by referring to
the value quoted by the bank for Credit linked note, in which the fair value had decreased by HK$ 1.2 million or equivalent to Baht 5.6 million was
assessed. The changes in fair value of these investments were recognised in the income statement during the year.

In addition, this subsidiary had invested in private corporate bonds issued by various companies listed in overseas Stock Exchanges and
one quoted bond through the two overseas banks. These investments are classified as available-for-sale investments. As at 31 December 2008,
the subsidiary had assessed the fair value of the bonds by referring to the value quoted by Bloomberg in which the fair value had decreased by
HKD 5.5 million or equivalent to Baht 24.8 million. The changes in the fair value of such bonds are shown as a separate item in the shareholders’
equity.
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9. Trade accounts receivable

The balances of trade accounts receivable as at 31 December 2008 and 2007, aged on the basis of due dates, are summarised below.
(Unit: Baht)

Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements

Age of receivable w00 [ aor 0 as [0

Accounts receivable - subsidiary companies

Not yet due - = 5,401,034 12,218,967
Past due

Up to 3 months = = 16,316,484 3,840,539
3 - 6 months = = 919,421 5,315,907
6 - 12 months = = 261,489 2,576,580
Over 12 months - = 232,408 =

Total accounts receivable - subsidiary companies - - 23,130,836 23,951,993
Accounts receivable - other companies

Not yet due 954,069,714 1,644,231,648 394,339,208 693,069,900
Past due

Up to 3 months 560,700,996 785,568,297 101,528,429 210,821,195
3 -6 months 30,274,195 20,921,189 9,049 5,108,293
6 - 12 months 7,013,470 5,295,242 - (102,610)
Over 12 months 1,266,278 1,131,943 = 1,518,593
Total accounts receivable - other companies 1,5583,324,653 2,457,148,319 495,876,686 910,415,371
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts (13,052,440) (7,608,389) - -

Total trade accounts receivable - other companies - net 1,640,272,213 2,449,5639,930 495,876,686 910,415,371
Total trade accounts receivable - net 1,5640,272,213 2,449,539,930 519,007,522 934,367,364

10. Inventories
(Unit: Baht)
Consolidated financial statements
Allowance for diminution in inventory value

Cost Reduction cost to net , , - : Inventories - net
) Damaged inventories Slow-moving inventories
realisable value

008 [ 2007 | 2008 [ 2007 | 2008 [ 2007 | 2008 2007 | 2008 | 2007

Finished goods 743,437,107 634,824,297 - - (152610995) (92,174,956)  (1,023,092)  (2,699,051) 589,803,020 539,950,290
Work in process 139,879,648 217,067,955 (35,226,645) = - - - - 104,653,003 217,067,955
Raw materials 1,387,701,189  1,410,828,001 - - (61,249,470) (70,708,100) (43,986,343) (41,348,272) 1282465376 1,298,771,629
Goods in transit 83,660,836 149,561,619 - - - - - - 83,660,836 149,561,619
Total 2,354,678780 2412,281,872 (35,226,645) - (213860465) (162,883056) (45,009,435) (44,047,323) 2,060,582,235 2,205351493

(Unit: Baht)

Separate financial statements
Allowance for diminution in inventory value

Cost Reduction cost to net ) ) L : Inventories - net
) Damaged inventories Slow-moving inventories
realisable value

2008 [2007 | 2008 [Tz | 008 [a007 | 2008 [z | 2008 [ao07

Finished goods 357,898,643 286,140,596 = - (151,494,992) (67,256,201) (384,347)  (2,438,986) 206,019,204 216,445,409
Work in process 48,136,024 66,092,408 = = = = = - 48,136,024 66,092,408
Raw materials 578,023,373 393,883,404 = - (27,655,266) (10,705,713) (18,446,316) (18,556,795) 531,921,791 364,620,896
Goods in transit 2,815,565 6,635,904 - - - - - - 2,815,565 6,635,904
Total 986,873,505 752,752,312 - - (179,150,258) (77,961,914) (18,830,663) (20,995,781) 788,892,584 653,794,617
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11. Investments in subsidiaries
(Unit: Baht)
Separate financial statements

Dividend received during
Paid up capital Shareholding percentage Cost the year ended 31

Company’s name

December
2008 | 2007 208 | 2000 2008 | 20007 2008 | 2007
. percent | Pement | I |

Hana Trading Company Limited - 250,000 - 100 - 4,000,000 - -
Hana Semiconductor (BKK)
Company Limited 1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000 100 100 1,011,100,000 1,011,100,000 300,000,000 370,000,000
Omac Sales Limited 325,375 62.588115) 100 100 273,491,816 273,491,816 - -
Hana Microelectronics
International Company Limited 51 51 100 100 51 51 - -
Hana Microelectronics Investment
Company Limited 51 51 100 100 111 111 - -
Hana Technologies Group
Limited 74 74 100 100 74 74 - -
Hana Semiconductor Investments
Limited - 3,626 - 100 - 3,626 - -
Hana Semiconductor (Ayuthaya)
Company Limited 1,200,000,000 1,200,000,000 58 58 2,142,909,786 2,142,909,786 139,999,998 192,499,997
Total investments in subsidiaries 3,427,501,838 3,431,505,464 439,999,998 562,499,997

On 21 December 2007, the Extraordinary General Meeting of shareholders of Hana Trading Company Limited, a subsidiary company,
passed a special resolution to dissolve the subsidiary and the subsidiary filed for deregistration with the Ministry of Commerce on 7 January 2008
and registered for liquidation on 2 July 2008. The Company received return on its investment in this subsidiary of Baht 0.8 million.

On 1 May 2008, the two overseas subsidiaries which are Hana Semiconductor Investments Limited and Hana Semiconductor Enterprises
Company Limited, had ceased their operations and had terminated their license with the BVI Government Register.

12. Property, plant and equipment

(Unit: Baht)
Consolidated financial statements
Construction
) in progress
Land Building . Leasehold — ciiiation mag:lc?ery fum%fjﬁrgeand Vehicles Others Pand Total
L e equipment equipment Mi‘;’gzsw
installation

Cost
31 December 2007 168,027,175 1,5617,528,930 148,696,880 460,225,492  7,224,695,100 376,039,142 53,464,530 13,757,123 221,352,915  10,183,787,287
Purchase/transfer in - 163,310,442 218,256 49,508,452 824,854,709 36,591,539 14,630,039 = 669,672,372 1,738,785,809
Disposal/transfer out - (347,890) (42,239) (42,368)  (64,470,417) (5,560,432) (9,314,983) - (609,819,306) (689,597,635)
Translation adjustment - 56,356,557 2,953,301 - 130,277,536 4,424,431 1,892,136 1,441,237 5,230,190 202,575,388
31 December 2008 168,027,175 1,726,848,039 151,826,198 509,691,576 8,115,356,928 411,494,680 60,671,722 15,198,360 276,436,171  11,435,550,849
Accumulated depreciation
31 December 2007 - 340,836,067 111,233,338 283,697,160 3,469,243,043 279,104,155 25,120,653 13,757,123 - 4,5622,991,539
Depreciation for the year - 82,093,387 6,123,062 35,724,508 783,092,807 38,431,995 16,340,288 - - 961,806,047
Accumulated depreciation for disposed assets - (23,483) - (33,329) (57,069,245) (5,301,796) (9,028,492) - - (71,456,345)
Translation adjustment = 7,214,801 1,116,274 = 28,101,346 2,043,764 748,691 1,441,237 = 40,666,113
31 December 2008 - 430,120,772 118,472,674 319,388,339 4,223,367,951 314,278,118 33,181,140 15,198,360 - 5,454,007,354
Allowance for impairment loss
31 December 2007 = = = 613,065 103,618,649 = = = = 104,231,714
Increase during the year - - - - 772,798 - - - - 772,798
Translation adjustment - - - - 1,330,084 - - - - 1,330,084
31 December 2008 - - - 613,065 105,721,531 - - = = 106,334,596
Net book value
31 December 2007 168,027,175 1,176,692,863 37,463,542 175,915,267 3,651,833,408 96,934,987 28,343,877 - 221,352,915 5,556,564,034
31 December 2008 168,027,175 1,296,727,267 33,353,524 189,690,172 3,786,267,446 97,216,562 27,490,582 - 276,436,171 5,875,208,899
Depreciation for the year
2007 (Baht 741 million included in manufacturing cost, and the balance in selling and administrative expenses) 847,581,697
2008 (Baht 834 million included in manufacturing cost, and the balance in selling and administrative expenses) 961,806,047
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(Unit: Baht)

Separate financial statements

Construction in
progress and

Land Building irr:sf;\?:rzlednt Installation mzzzli':mri::d ;)nfzceeqfuuir:;;:r; Vehicles Machinery Total
under
installation
Cost
31 December 2007 61,643,459 637,849,861 97,165,410 111,900,069 1,661,644,693 85,325,164 15,673,541 104,588,057 2,665,790,254
Purchase/transfer in = 45,410,428 = 15,724,665 145,528,821 7,425,645 6,296,762 234,728,142 455,114,463
Disposal/transfer out = o - - (19,776,717) (52,088) (3,400,478) (172,344,708) (195,573,991)
31 December 2008 61,643,459 683,260,289 97,165,410 127,624,734 1,677,396,797 92,698,721 18,569,825 166,971,491 2,925,330,726
Accumulated depreciation
31 December 2007 < 168,516,631 80,162,077 43,380,500 768,822,868 66,950,715 9,338,268 ® 1,127,171,069
Depreciation for the year = 33,370,664 4,858,091 9,628,354 174,134,929 6,527,712 3,041,449 = 231,461,199
Accumulated depreciation for disposed assets = = = = (17,646,784) (5,522) (3,360,752) - (21,013,058)
31 December 2008 = 191,887,295 85,020,168 52,908,854 925,311,013 73,472,905 9,018,965 = 1,337,619,200
Allowance for impairment loss
31 December 2007 = © S 613,065 7,316,198 = - - 7,929,263
Increase during the year = = = = 772,798 = = = 772,798
31 December 2008 - - - 613,065 8,088,996 - - - 8,702,061
Net book value
31 December 2007 61,643,459 479,333,230 17,003,333 67,906,504 775,505,627 18,374,449 6,335,273 104,588,057 1,530,689,932
31 December 2008 61,643,459 491,372,994 12,145,242 74,102,815 743,996,788 19,225,816 9,550,860 166,971,491 1,679,009,465
Depreciation for the year
2007 (Baht 160 million included in manufacturing cost, and the balance in selling and administrative expenses) 198,990,353

2008 (Baht 174 million included in manufacturing cost, and the balance in selling and administrative expenses) 231,461,199

As at 31 December 2008, certain equipment items have been fully depreciated but are still in use. The original cost of those assets
amounted to approximately Baht 2,725 million (2007: Baht 2,097 million) and for the Company amounted to approximately Baht 509 million (2007:
Baht 360 million).

13. Intangible assets
Details of intangible assets which are computer software are as follows:

(Unit: Baht)
Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements
2008 2007 | 208 [ 2007
Cost 26,555,884 16,942,856 3,197,017 1,537,757
Less: Accumulated amortisation (8,930,654) (6,568,223) (1,009,256) (772,679)
Net book value 17,625,230 10,374,633 2,187,761 765,078
Amortisation expenses included in the income statements for the year 2,362,431 1,898,549 236,577 128,087

14. Share capital

Issued and paid-up capital

As at 31 December 2008, the issued and paid-up share capital of the Company had increased from the exercise of warrants amounting to
Baht 69,000. The Company registered with the Ministry of Commerce for the increase of its share capital, bringing the issued and paid-up share
capital as at 31 December 2008 to be Baht 830,474,960 (830,474,960 ordinary shares of Baht 1 each).

15. Warrants
As at 31 December 2008, the outstanding warrants issued to the Company’s employees and directors which remain unexercised are as follows:
1. 20,000,000 warrants

Exercise price : Baht 20.73 per share
Exercise ratio : 1 ordinary share: 1 warrant
Exercise period : From 31 October 2005 to 31 July 2009
Outstanding unexercised warrants : 5,956,100 warrants
2. 20,000,000 warrants
Exercise price : Baht 27.40 per share
Exercise ratio : 1 ordinary share: 1 warrant
Exercise period : From 31 October 2006 to 31 July 2010
Outstanding unexercised warrants : 20,000,000 warrants

Since exercise price of the above warrants exceeds the weighted average of fair value of ordinary shares for the year ended 31 December
2008, the Company expected that the warrant will not be exercised and had excluded the warrants from the calculation of dilutive potential
ordinary shares for diluted earnings per share calculation.
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16. Statutory reserve

Pursuant to Section 116 of the Public Limited Companies Act B.E. 2535, the Company is required to set aside to a statutory reserve at least
5 percent of its net income after deducting accumulated deficit brought forward (if any), until the reserve reaches 10 percent of the registered
capital. The statutory reserve is not available for dividend distribution.

17. Treasury shares
As at 31 December 2008, details of treasury shares are as follows:

Consolidated and separate financial statements

Cost of treasury shares (Thousand Baht) 41,037
Number of treasury shares (Thousand shares) 4,477
Average price per share (Baht) 9.17
Percentage of treasury shares to the Company’s shares in issue 0.54

A resolution of a meeting of the Company’s Board of Directors No. 4/2551 held on 7 October 2008 approved the repurchase of shares of the
Company in order to manage its excess cash, increase earnings per share and to maximise shareholder benefits, with a budget of not more than
Baht 1,600 million. The repurchase shall not more than 83 million shares, equivalent to 9.99% of total issued and paid-up shares of the Company.
The period of repurchase of shares is from 22 October 2008 to 22 April 2009 and these shares are to be sold after 6 months from the date of
completing the repurchase of shares, but not more than 3 years.

Under the notification of the Office of the Securities and Exchange Commission No. Gor Lor Tor. Chor. Sor. (Wor) 2/2548 and the notification
of the Federation of Accounting Professions No. Sor. Sor Wor Bor Chor. 016/2548, public limited company is required to set aside retained
earnings in an amount equal to the amount paid for treasury shares until either the shares are sold or paid-up capital is reduced by cancellation of
any remaining unsold shares. During the year 2008, the Company has set aside approximately Baht 41 million as reserve for treasury shares.

18. Gain on sale of investment in an associate

On 20 April 2007, Unisem (M) Berhad entered into a sale and purchase agreement to acquire up to 100% of the paid up capital of
Advanced Interconnect Technologies Limited, which was an associated company held by the Company’s subsidiary, for a cash consideration of
USD 70.25 million. The Company indirectly owned 23.4 percent of the equity of such associate at the time of sale. In July 2007, the sales and
purchase transaction was completed and the Company’s subsidiary received approximately USD 14.9 million or equivalent to approximately Baht
504.6 million. A further distribution of approximately USD 0.7 million or equivalent to approximately Baht 24.1 million was also received in
December 2007 after expenses related to the transactions were finalised. Furthermore, another subsidiary received a loan repayment of USD 0.9
million or equivalent to approximately Baht 28.9 million from the associate. The subsidiaries had fully set up allowance for impairment of investment
and recorded doubtful account on such loan in the past. Therefore, the proceeds from this associate were recorded as other income in the
consolidated income statement for the year 2007.

19. Expenses by nature
Significant expenses by nature are as follows:

(Unit: Baht)
Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements
2008 [ 27 | 08 [ 207

Salary and wages and other employee benefits 2,293,143,841 1,748,366,638 589,995,514 572,557,451
Directors’ and management’s remuneration 84,264,221 84,883,623 12,207,307 13,953,897
Depreciation 961,806,047 847,581,697 231,461,199 198,990,353
Loss on tax assessment - 150,465,664 - 150,465,664
Loss on exchange - - 22,512,938 =
Product warranty expenses 26,840,913 27,716,005 - -
Guarantee expenses - 14,532,889 - 14,532,889
Raw materials and consumables used 8,834,858,000 9,682,682,000 3,5569,986,000 3,826,649,000
Changes in inventories of finished goods and work in process (31,424,503) 51,363,499 (63,801,563) (31,305,765)
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Note to Financial Statements

21. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing net income for the year by the weighted average number of ordinary shares held by

public and in issue during the year.

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing net income for the year by the weighted average number of ordinary shares held by

public and in issue during the year plus the weighted average number of ordinary shares which would need to be issued to convert of all dilutive

potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares. The calculation assumes that the conversion took place either at the beginning of the year or on the

date the potential ordinary shares were issued.
21.1 Weighted average number of ordinary shares

As at 31 December 2008 and 2007, the weighted average number of ordinary shares in the consolidated and separate financial statements

is calculated as follows:

Balance brought forward
Add: Shares issued during the year
Less: Treasury shares
Weighted average number of ordinary shares
Add: Potential ordinary shares - share warrants
(2008: 25,956,100 shares, 2007: 28,699,600 shares)

Diluted weighted average number of ordinary shares

(Unit: Shares)

Consolidated and separate financial statement

2008
830,405,961 825,218,290
39,196 4,790,213
(311,936) =
830,133,221 830,008,503
991,157
830,133,221 830,999,660

Since exercise price of the above warrants exceeds the weighted average of fair value of ordinary shares for the year ended 31 December

2008, the Company expected that the warrant will not be exercised, and had excluded the warrants from the calculation of potential diluted

ordinary shares for diluted earnings per share calculation.

21.2 Reconciliation between basic earnings per share and diluted earnings per share is presented below:

Net income

2008

Thousand
Baht

Basic earnings per share

Net income attributable to equity holders of the parent 1,909,550
Effect of dilutive potential

ordinary shares

Warrants to the directors and employees of the
Company 25,956,100 units

(2007: 28,699,000 units) =

2,449,161

Weighted average number
of ordinary shares

2008

Thousand
Shares

830,133

830,009

991

Diluted earnings per share
(Net income of ordinary
shareholders assuming the
exercise of warrants)

Net income attributable to equity holders of the parent 1,909,550

2,449,161

830,133

831,000

Consolidated financial statements For the year ended 31 December

Earnings per share

2008
Baht

2.30

2.30

2.95
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Basic earnings per share

Net income attributable to equity holders of the parent
Effect of dilutive potential

ordinary shares

Warrants to the directors and employees of the
Company 25,956,100 units

(2007: 28,699,600 units)

KNgIKQUS:noudUMSIdU
Note to Financial Statements

Separate financial statements For the year ended 31 December

Net income Weighted average number of

ordinary shares

Earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share
(Net income of ordinary
shareholders assuming the
exercise of warrants)

Net income attributable to equity holders of the parent

2008 | 2000 2008 | 2007 2008 | 2007
Thousand Thousand Baht
Baht Shares
1,323,666 1,192,319 830,133 830,009 1.59 1.44
- - - 991
1,323,666 1,192,319 830,133 831,000 1.59 1.43

22. Segment information

The Company and its subsidiaries mainly involve a single industry segment in electronic component and mainly carry on their business in

the geographic areas in Thailand, Hong Kong, USA and China. Geographical segment information of the Company and its subsidiary companies

for the years ended 31 December 2008 and 2007 are as follows:

(Unit: Million Baht)

Consolidated financial statements

Domestic Foreign Eliminated Total
2008 | 2007 | 2008 | 2007 | 2008 | 2007 . 2008 | 2007
Revenue from external customers 11,555 12,215 8511 3,421 - - 15,106 15,636
Intersegment revenues 365 315 4,521 5,074 (4,886) (5,389) - -
Total revenues 11,920 12,530 8,072 8,495 (4,886) (5,389) 15,106 15,636
Segment income 1,952 2,012 610 547 2,562 2,559
Unallocated income and expenses:
Gain on sale of investment in an associate - 529
Bad debt recovery - 29
Other income 407 466
Selling expenses (179) (179)
Administrative expenses (720) (652)
Loss on tax assessment - (150)
Other expenses (31) (42)
Finance cost (6) (8)
Corporate income tax (123) (103)
Net income for the year 1,910 2,449
Consolidated financial statements
Domestic _ Eliminated Total

2008 2007
Property, plant and equipment - net 4,059 1,816 - 5,875 5,657
Other assets 15,258 17,114 (23,935) 8,437 8,216
Total assets 19,317 18,930 (23,935) 14,312 13,773

Transfer prices between business segments are as set out in Note 7 to the financial statements.
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23. Provident fund

The Company, the subsidiaries and their employees have jointly established a provident fund in accordance with the Provident Fund Act
B.E. 2530. Both employees and the Company or the subsidiaries contribute to the fund monthly at the rates of 3.0 - 7.5 percent of basic salary. The
fund, which is managed by SCB Asset Management Company Limited, will be paid to employees upon terminating in accordance with the fund
rules. During the year 2008, total amount of approximately of Baht 36 million (2007: Baht 33 million) had been contributed to the fund by the
Company and its subsidiaries, and Baht 10 million had been contributed by the Company (2007: Baht 10 million).

24. Dividend paid
During the year 2008 and 2007, the Company and its subsidiaries had dividend payments as follows:
(Unit: Baht)
Approved by Total dividends _
The Company
For the year 2008

Dividends on 2007 income Annual General Meeting of the shareholders on 30 April 2008 1,079,353,028 1.30
Total for the year 2008 1,079,353,028 1.30
For the year 2007

Dividends on 2006 income Annual General Meeting of the shareholders on 30 April 2007 827,124,690 1.00
Total for the year 2007 827,124,690 1.00

Subsidiary companies

Hana Semiconductor (BKK) Company Limited

For the year 2008

Dividends on the unappropriated retained earnings Annual General Meeting of the shareholders 30 April 2008 150,000,000 1.50
Interim dividend in respect of the income for the period

from 1 January 2008 to 30 April 2008 Board of Director's Meeting on 6 May 2008 150,000,000 1.50

Total for the year 2008 300,000,000 3.00

For the year 2007

Dividends on the unappropriated retained earnings Annual General Meeting of the shareholders 30 April 2007 170,000,000 1.70
Interim dividend in respect of the income for the period

from 1 January 2007 to 30 April 2007 Board of Director's Meeting on 21 May 2007 100,000,000 1.00
Interim dividend in respect of the income for the period

from 1 January 2007 to 30 June 2007 Board of Director's Meeting on 6 September 2007 100,000,000 1.00

Total for the year 2007 370,000,000 3.70

(Unit: Baht)
Approved by Total dividends -

Hana Semiconductor (Ayutthaya) Company Limited
For the year 2008

Dividends on the unappropriated retained earnings Annual General Meeting of the shareholders on 25 April 2008 240,000,000 2.00
Total for the year 2008 240,000,000 2.00
For the year 2007

Dividends on the unappropriated retained earnings Annual General Meeting of the shareholders on 27 April 2007 330,000,000 2.75
Total for the year 2007 330,000,000 2.75

25. Commitments and contingent liabilities

25.1 Capital commitments

As at 31 December 2008, the Company and its subsidiaries had capital commitment of approximately USD 1.3 million or equivalent to Baht
47 million, relating to the construction of factory buildings and acquisition of machinery.

25.2 Operating lease commitments

The Company and its subsidiaries operate their business in Bangkok on a leased premise, the lease agreement of which is made between
the landlord and a related company. The lease is for a period as from the year 1986 up to the year 2014 with the annual lease payment of
approximately Baht 0.2 million in the year 1992 and subject to an increase at the rate of 10% per annum.

25.3 Marketing supportive service agreement

Since the year 2001, the Company and four subsidiary companies entered into marketing supportive service agreement with an overseas
subsidiary company. Under that agreement, the Company and the four subsidiary companies have to pay service fees to that subsidiary company
at the rates stipulated in the agreement.

25.4 Guarantees

As at 31 December 2008, there were outstanding bank guarantees of approximately Baht 187 million (2007: Baht 181 million) issued by
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banks on behalf of the Company and its subsidiaries in respect of certain performance bonds as required in the normal course of business of the
Company and the subsidiaries. These included letters of guarantee amounting to Baht 144 million to be security for the tax assessment of a

subsidiary company made by the Revenue Department (as discussed in Note 25.5) and Baht 42 million to guarantee electricity usage, among
others.

25.5 Tax assessment and litigation

a) During the year 2003, the Company received a notification of a corporate income tax assessment for the year 1997 from the Revenue
Department for not allocating interest expenses and loss on exchange rate of loans to the promoted operations, causing the under
recording of corporate income tax for the year 1997, which together with related penalty and surcharge amounted to Baht 150 million.
The Company did not agree with the assessment and appealed it to the Tax Tribunal. In November 2007, the Tax Tribunal rejected
the appeal. Currently, the Company is in the process of appealing to the Tax Court. The Company expects that the Supreme Court will
reverse the judgment of the Central Tax Court and return the assessed amount plus interest to the Company.

However, the Company has recorded provision for loss on tax assessment of approximately Baht 150 million and has placed a bank

guarantee as security against the assessment.

b) As at 31 December 2006, the Company had contingent liabilities from legal action which the Company disputed concerning the
Company’s purported obligations with regards to the liabilities of a former related company. The Company made full provision for
estimated maximum payment in event of an unfavorable ruling by the court for approximately USD 1 million or equivalent Baht 31
million together with legal cost and interest at the rate of 10% per annum. In February 2008, the Company had made settlement
agreement and general release for this case in which the Company already paid for such guarantee expenses of Baht 7.9 million.
The Company had therefore reversed the remaining guarantee expenses of Baht 25.5 million as other income in the income statement
for the year ended 31 December 2008.

26. Financial instruments

26.1 Financial risk management and policies

The Company’s and its subsidiaries’ financial instruments, as defined under Thai Accounting Standard No. 48 “Financial Instruments:
Disclosure and Presentations”, principally comprise cash and cash equivalents, trade accounts receivable, investments, and accounts payable.
The financial risks associated with these financial instruments and how they are managed is described below.

Credit risk

The Company and the subsidiaries are exposed to credit risk primarily with respect to trade accounts receivable. The Company and the
subsidiaries manage the risk by adopting appropriate credit control policies and procedures and therefore do not expect to incur material financial
losses. The maximum exposure to credit risk is limited to the carrying amounts of receivables as stated in the balance sheets.

Interest rate risk

The Company’s and the subsidiaries’ exposure to interest rate risk relates primarily to their cash at banks. However, since cash at banks
bear floating interest rates, or fixed interest rate which are close to the market rate the interest rate risk is expected to be minimal.

Significant financial assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2008 classified by type of interest rates are summarised in the table below, with
those financial assets and liabilities that carry fixed interest rates further classified based on the maturity date, or the repricing date if this occurs

before the maturity date.

Consolidated financial statements

Fixed interest rate Non-interest bearing Effective interest rate
within one year

(Million Baht) (% p.a.)
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1,981 2,283 52 4,316 0.50 - 2.55
Short-term investments 35 = 328 363 LIBOR + 1.65
Trade accounts receivable = = 1,640 1,640 =
Financial Liabilities
Trade accounts payable = = 1,088 1,088 -

Separate financial statements

Fixed interest rate Non-interest bearing Effective interest rate
within one year

(Million Baht) (% p.a.)
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 410 199 2 611 0.50-0.75
Trade accounts receivable - - 5l 519 -
Investments in subsidiary companies - - 3,428 3,428 -
Financial Liabilities
Trade accounts payable - - 420 420 -

Foreign currency risk

The Company’s and the subsidiaries’ exposure to foreign currency risk arise mainly from trading transactions that are denominated in
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foreign currencies. The Company and its subsidiaries seek to reduce this risk by entering into forward exchange contracts when they consider
appropriate. Generally, the forward contracts will mature within one year.
The balances of financial assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies as at 31 December 2008 are summarised below.

Foreign currency Financial assets Financial liabilities Average exchange rate as at 31 December 2008
(Million) (Million) (Baht per 1 foreign currency unit)
US Dollar 1,408 842 34.9438
New Taiwan Dollar 4 = 1.0578
Singapore Dollar = 1" 24.2207

Forward exchange contracts outstanding as at 31 December 2008 are summarised below.

Foreign currency Sold amount Contractual exchange rate - sold amount
(Million) (Baht per 1 foreign currency unit)
US Dollar 50 33.54 -34.92

In addition, an overseas subsidiary of the Company entered into the government bond linked asset swap agreements with an overseas
bank. The details of the investment asset swap agreements outstanding as at 31 December 2008 are as follows:

Linked asset Notional amount Maturity date Yield to maturity Fair value gain (loss)
(Million USD) (Percent) (Million Baht)
1-Year South Korean government bond 1 23 March 2009 1.40 =
2-Year China government bond 1 26 February 2010 1.05 3.3

26.2 Fair value

Since the majority of the Company’s and the subsidiaries’ financial instruments are short-term in nature which carry floating interest rate or
the interest rate close to market rates, their fair value is not expected to be materially different from the amounts presented in the balance sheets.

A fair value is the amount for which an asset can be exchanged or a liability settled between knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s
length transaction. The fair value is determined by reference to the market price of the financial instrument or by using an appropriate valuation
technique, depending on the nature of the instrument.

27. Capital management

The primary objective of the Company’s and its subsidiaries’ capital management is to ensure that they have an appropriate financial
structure and preserve the ability to continue its business as a going concern.

According to the balance sheet as at 31 December 2008, the Group’s debt-to-equity ratio was 0.2:1 (2007: 0.2:1) and the Company’s was
0.1:1 (2007: 0.1:1).

28. Reclassification
Certain amounts in the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2007 have been reclassified to conform to the current year's
classification but with no effect to previously reported net income or shareholders’ equity. The reclassifications are as follows:

(Unit: Baht)
Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements
As reclassified As previously reported As reclassified As previously reported
Property, plant and equipment - net 5,556,564,034 5,566,938,667 1,530,689,932 1,531,455,010

Intangible assets - net 10,374,633 = 765,078 =

During the year 2008, the Company and its subsidiaries recorded computer software as intangible assets in accordance with TAS 51
“Intangible Assets”. Thus, the reclassification for the year 2007 has been made to previously reported figures.

29. Subsequent event

On 27 February 2009, the meeting of the Board of Directors of the Company No. 1/2009 passed some resolutions as follows:

1) Approved the dividend payment from the 2008 income to the Company’s shareholders at Baht 1.20 per share. The dividend will be
paid on 14 May 2009.

2) Approved to offset the excess of cost of investments over net book value of the subsidiary companies amounted to Baht 154,975,555,
which the Company has already deducted in the consolidated shareholders’ equity as at 31 December 2008, against the
unappropriated retained earnings in the consolidated shareholders’ equity.

The dividend payment and the offsetting of the excess of cost of investments over net book value of the subsidiary companies will

subsequently be proposed for approval in the Annual General Meeting of the Company’s shareholders.

30. Approval of financial statements
These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on 27 February 2009.
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